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 1               MR. HACKER:  I would like to call

 2 to order the February 24th, 2020, meeting of the

 3 Town of Kiawah Island Board of Zoning Appeals.

 4               Board members who will be -- who

 5 are here to hear the cases presented today are

 6 Morris Hanan, Wendy Kulick, Frank Cassidy, Scott

 7 Parker, and Jay Lewis, and myself, Ron Hacker.

 8 And we hope that Ben Farabee will be here, but he

 9 is the one missing right now.

10          We also have with us our staff member,

11 John Taylor, Jr., and attorney for the BZA, Joe

12 Wilson.

13               Case findings for this and any BZA

14 meetings are available for public review and

15 inspection during normal business hours here at

16 Town Hall.

17               At this time, I'd like to ask those

18 of you in the audience if you are familiar with

19 the procedures of the BZA.  I have -- I can read

20 to you the -- all the nuances of the committee,

21 but if you understand it, I will forego that, and

22 we will start the meeting.

23               If anyone would like to hear the

24 full explanation of how we -- how the board

25 operates, raise their hand.



Kiawah BZA Meeting 4

Clark & Associates, Inc.

 1               All right.  We'll move right on

 2 with the -- because today's hearing is a public

 3 fact-finding meeting, we are in compliance with

 4 the Freedom of Information Act and South Carolina

 5 code 6-29-70.  Because this is a quasi-judicial

 6 body, everything said in the meeting must be

 7 complete, true, and accurate.

 8               All of the information provided to

 9 the BZA is considered evidence, and this board

10 may certify contempt of circuit court if false

11 statements are made either in writing or orally.

12 Because of this, each person who wishes to

13 address the board will be sworn in.

14          In order to accomplish this, I'd like

15 those wishing to speak to please stand as a

16 group, if you would.  I'd like our attorney

17 Mr. Wilson to administer the oath.

18               (Mr. Wilson places everyone

19 standing under oath.)

20               MR. HACKER:  Thank you.  I should

21 now call case BZA 20-00004 at 155 Kiawah Island

22 Club Drive.  Staff will present facts pertinent

23 to the case.  I shall then call the applicant to

24 address the case.  The applicant shall please

25 stand up and state your name and current address
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 1 for the record before presenting testimony.

 2          I will then ask those speaking either in

 3 support or against the case if they would do the

 4 following, to stand and do the same procedure.

 5 Each person speaking after the initial

 6 presentation by the staff will have two minutes,

 7 and then the applicant will have two minutes to

 8 provide rebuttal.  Thank you.

 9          John, the staff findings?

10               MR. TAYLOR:  Thank you.  Our first

11 case this afternoon is BZA case 20-000004.  This

12 is a variance request for the reduction of the

13 required 30 foot side setback for a proposed

14 one-story addition that is connecting existing

15 carriage house in a principal structure.  The

16 address is 155 Kiawah Island Club Drive, TMS

17 number 209-00-00-064.

18          The subject property is under the

19 purview of the ARB, the Architectural Review

20 Board and if zone R-2 and is within the

21 underdeveloped land of Kiawah Island.  The

22 ordinance requires that there is a 20-feet front

23 setback, a 25-foot left side side yard setback

24 and a right side yard setback, and a 30-foot rear

25 yard setback.  That will allow the maximum lot
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 1 coverage of 33 percent for this subject property.

 2               Existing yard coverage is currently

 3 32.1 percent, and the structure is a legal

 4 conforming structure.  It was constructed in

 5 2009, and that's according to Charleston County

 6 records, and the subject property is roughly

 7 120,000 square feet.

 8               The applicant's proposed plans

 9 modify the existing single-family structure by

10 adding an enclosed heated connecter between the

11 principal structure in the carriage house

12 replacing the existing open bridge connecter.

13               Here are the zoning as stated is

14 R-2, a few aerial shots of the site, and this is

15 showing the existing site here.  The entranceway

16 -- the picture to the right shows the carriage

17 house and garage below, and there is an open

18 bridge as existing today.

19               According to the existing carriage

20 house, that currently encroaches into the

21 required 30-foot side setback by approximately

22 five feet and approximately four feet into the

23 required front setback, and that was granted

24 approval by the Kiawah Island Architectural

25 Review Board.
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 1               The Kiawah Island Architectural

 2 Review Board, they may approve deviations from a

 3 particular standard on the Exhibit 13.3,

 4 according to the general lot standard.  And those

 5 may not exceed 20 percent of the standards.  The

 6 lot we mentioned in the setbacks exceed 10

 7 percent of the standards for maximum lot

 8 coverage.  That's excluding the number of floors.

 9               The applicant's letter of intent

10 states both the plan works best in relationship

11 to the carriage house, if the addition goes three

12 feet over the side yard setback line.

13          And the ARB has well approved this

14 variance request stating that, "the variance to

15 allow the connector addition to the encroached

16 three feet -- to encroached three feet into the

17 side yard setback is approved, given the original

18 placement of the home that save trees and the

19 likelihood that this variance would have been

20 approved on the initial Architectural Review

21 Board review".

22               There are a few more images, and I

23 will go through the actual findings -- staff

24 findings, but I just want to point out here on

25 the exhibit, that connector piece is here, the
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 1 existing carriage house up on the corner.  This

 2 is the one story proposed addition that's

 3 connecting the principal structure to the

 4 carriage house.

 5          Currently, it's an open bridge, and that

 6 variance request is this particular area that's

 7 three feet over the setback.  The existing

 8 carriage house sits approximately five feet over

 9 that setback on the side, and then I think four

10 feet to the front setback.

11          The applicant as well included proposed

12 plans for the particular area.  This is an

13 elevation showing that particular added one foot

14 -- I'm sorry, one story connector piece.

15          And so regarding the staff reviews of

16 this particular case, regarding criteria A, the

17 staff has found that there may be extraordinary

18 and exceptional conditions pertaining to this

19 particular property, and that is because of the

20 required setbacks including the existing

21 encroachment that happens already into the 20

22 foot front setback and to the 30 foot side

23 setback.

24          The existing structure was completed and

25 -- or established in 2009.  In addition, the
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 1 applicant has stated, "when designing the site

 2 plan and house footprint, compromises were made

 3 in effort to save two live oak trees in the front

 4 and back at the center of the house, and five

 5 others were saved along the south of the lot

 6 including a large oak cluster.

 7          This stretched out the floor plan

 8 layout.  The location of the carriage house

 9 worked best to spill over the north side yard

10 setback by five feet.  The ARB approved the

11 setback variance doing their design review in

12 2008."

13               Criteria B, the staff has found

14 that these conditions may be unique to the

15 subject property and may not apply to others in

16 the vicinity.  This project -- this property is

17 located in the R-2 zoning district and adjacent

18 properties to the north, south and across Kiawah

19 Island Club Drive are also within the R-2 zoning

20 district.

21               Existing structures within the

22 vicinity may or not have similar encroachment

23 patterns, and per the applicant's letter of

24 intent, "the house -- the house designs on Kiawah

25 are likely affected by the efforts to preserve as
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 1 many live oak trees on the site as possible.  In

 2 our case, the main section of the house was

 3 limited to 20 feet -- 28 feet deep from saving

 4 two nice live oaks that now blanket the house,

 5 which is a type fit for a Kiawah Island house.

 6 We also shifted the house to the north to

 7 preserve four live oaks and a big oak cluster on

 8 the south side of the lot."

 9               Criteria C, staff has found that

10 this application of ordinance to 155 Kiawah

11 Island Club Drive, it would prohibit the proposed

12 enclosed heated connection between the principal

13 structure in the carriage house, both the

14 existing structure and the proposed modifications

15 as they do sit within that required 30 foot side

16 setback; however, it doesn't unreasonably

17 restrict utilization of the property.

18          The applicant has also stated that,

19 given the carriage house was approved to be five

20 feet over the setback during the original ARB

21 review, the addition tends to slide over the

22 setback to center with insets on the carriage

23 house, and so for aesthetics, we are holding the

24 addition back two feet from the south corner of

25 the carriage house.  This is one of the factors
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 1 in this need for the side yard setback variance.

 2               Criteria D, the authorization of

 3 the variance may not be of substantial detriment

 4 to the adjacent properties of the public good.

 5 There is an existing side yard setback

 6 encroachment, and the proposed modifications of

 7 approximately two foot less in the existing side

 8 yard encroachment of the existing carriage house.

 9               The subject property is heavily

10 landscaped creating a visual buffer from the

11 street, and furthermore, numerous homes along

12 Kiawah Island Club Drive have connectors between

13 the primary house and carriage house.

14               Per the applicant's letter of

15 intent, we have a deep 30 foot side setback on

16 the north side and the proposed addition will

17 fall in the shadow of the massing of the existing

18 carriage house, which is 5 feet over the setback

19 line, failed in such that it is three feet over

20 the setback line.

21               And the addition would not be

22 visible from the street being inset on the

23 carriage house.  The area pavers will be removed

24 on the south side of an addition and new

25 landscape will be added to the area.
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 1               Criteria E, the BZA may not

 2 consider profitability when considering this

 3 variance request, and the applicant has stated

 4 that the property owners wanted weather-protected

 5 connection room between the main house and the

 6 guest suite over the carriage house.  The motive

 7 is not related to any issues of profit from the

 8 property.

 9               Criteria G, the need for the

10 variance may be the result of the applicant's own

11 actions.  Since the existing residence is

12 conforming, the existing structure could be

13 maintained without the need for a variance.

14               However, per the applicant's letter

15 of intent, the original site design was dictated

16 by the locations of the live oak trees, the

17 narrowing of the main body depth, and the

18 shifting of the house to the north as much as

19 possible to preserve four live oaks off the

20 southwest corner and the big oak cluster off the

21 southeast corner.

22               Two live oaks in the middle of the

23 lot were saved but limited to the house there.

24 This is why the ARB supported this approach due

25 to preserving same live oak trees.
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 1               Criteria H, the granting of this

 2 variance may not be contrary to the public or

 3 neighborhood interests.  As stated, the

 4 Architectural Review Board did approve this

 5 particular project, this particular variance

 6 request, and they stated that the variance to

 7 allow the connector to add -- to allow the

 8 connector addition to encroach into the three

 9 feet into the side yard setback is approved.

10               And that was given to the original

11 placement of the home to save trees in the

12 likelihood that this would have been approved at

13 the original submittal for the initial review

14 rather.  Also, the applicant has shared our

15 variance would not adversely affect other

16 properties in the vicinity.

17               The proposed addition has less of a

18 setback over extending adjacent carriage house

19 and will fall into the shadow visually of the

20 carriage house, not visible from the street.

21               The final criteria, the granting on

22 the variance may not substantially conflict with

23 the comprehensive plans and purposes of the

24 ordinance, and the applicant's proposed plan does

25 meet the "prior lot coverage standards with the
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 1 added connector and additionally reduce the

 2 overall lot coverage from approximately 32.1

 3 percent to 31.6 percent."

 4               And per the applicant's letter of

 5 intent, "our variance requests were reviewed and

 6 approved by the Architectural Review Board, which

 7 comments included the board has approved this

 8 connector room as shown on the original review.

 9 Our variance should not conflict with the

10 purposes of the BZA zoning ordinance based on the

11 ARB's approval.

12               And so, based on those particular

13 items, the case number BZA20-00004, the next

14 request for a reduction of this required 30 foot

15 side setback for that one story proposed carriage

16 house addition or connector, rather, the BZA can

17 approve this, approve with conditions or deny.

18               Are there any particular questions

19 of staff?

20               MR. CASSIDY:  I have one question.

21 John, paragraph 5 on the staff review, which you

22 quoted earlier, I just want to make sure I

23 understand that.  When this house was originally

24 built, it did not require -- the encroachment of

25 the carriage house and did not require approval



Kiawah BZA Meeting 15

Clark & Associates, Inc.

 1 because it met those criteria A and B that were

 2 there?

 3               MR. TAYLOR:  So the ARB would have

 4 purview to exceed whatever would be permitted by

 5 the zoning ordinance based on the agreement

 6 within the development agreement, and so this

 7 particular lot would have been subject to those

 8 standards.

 9          And so they can go over whatever those

10 minimum requirements would be, whether it's a

11 setback adjustment.  The ARB has to approve it,

12 so this particular house would have met those.

13               MR. CASSIDY:  As long as it's

14 within those A and B criteria?

15               MR. TAYLOR:  Correct.

16               MR. CASSIDY:  Does that mean that

17 this -- because we're considering this addition

18 here today, does that mean that this -- this new

19 addition is beyond those A and B criteria?

20               MR. TAYLOR:  That -- I don't know

21 the exact percentage of what that would be, but I

22 think it still would be beyond -- I don't know

23 exactly what number that percentage would be, but

24 we're reviewing it because of the variances, that

25 it would have gone beyond the existing permit.
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 1               MR. CASSIDY:  Understood.

 2               MR. PARKER:  I have a question

 3 about the lot coverage, which is decreasing.  Is

 4 that primarily a result of them removing the 145

 5 square feet of pavers as part of this project?

 6               MR. TAYLOR:  Yes, so they're -- in

 7 their reduction, they're reducing the one story

 8 going up because it would change the existing --

 9               MR. PARKER:  Three.  Right.

10               MR. TAYLOR:  Yeah.

11               MS. KULICK:  My question is on the

12 same paragraph that Frank was talking about, and

13 I'm not sure if it's best directed at you or at

14 the applicant, but the last sentence of that

15 paragraph says, "the applicant's letter of intent

16 states the plan works best in relationship to the

17 carriage house if the addition goes three feet

18 over the side setback line."

19               MR. TAYLOR:  Yeah, but I would

20 direct that as a design --

21               MS. KULICK:  Okay.

22               MR. TAYLOR:  -- question to the

23 applicant.

24               MS. KULICK:  Okay.  I will do that.

25 Thanks, John.
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 1               MR. HACKER:  If there are no

 2 further questions, we'll hear from the applicant.

 3               MR. STESSMAN:  I am the applicant.

 4               MR. HACKER:  Before we do that,

 5 state your name and address.

 6               MR. STESSMAN:  First time here, so

 7 pardon my lack of --

 8               MR. HACKER:  That's okay.

 9               MR. STESSMAN:  -- protocol.  I'm

10 Dennis Stessman, and we are asking for the

11 approval.  Our architect was the original

12 architect on the home.  We bought the home as it

13 was, so we bought it a couple of years after it

14 was completed.

15               If you're going to ask me that

16 question, why does that fit best?  Fits best was

17 kind of what we're looking to accomplish with the

18 room.  We're trying to have a sitting room of a

19 reasonable size.

20               MS. KULICK:  When you finish, I

21 will ask my question.

22               MR. STESSMAN:  Okay.  But that's --

23 that's what -- I'm just here to make our request

24 known, so I'm open to any questions.

25               MS. KULICK:  You said what works
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 1 best.  What other options were considered before

 2 this one?  And if the board votes not to approve

 3 the variance, will you proceed with different

 4 plans, or will you not do anything?

 5               MR. STESSMAN:  The honest answer to

 6 that is, we hope that these get approved

 7 obviously.

 8               MS. KULICK:  I understand.

 9               MR. STESSMAN:  Our original intent

10 was to move it out all the way to the side, to

11 the same -- to the same setback as the house, the

12 carriage house.  Our architect said that we'll be

13 -- we'll be encroaching that setback space

14 anyway.  It would be better, and we'll get --

15 we'll have a better chance of success with the

16 ARB, particularly.

17          He was hoping that I wouldn't have to

18 come here.  But he said, if we get the ARB's

19 approval, in order to do that, the setback only

20 being three feet will improve the aesthetics of

21 the addition, and so that's what he recommended.

22               MR. HANAN:  But there is no impact

23 on live oaks or any other trees --

24               MR. STESSMAN:  No.

25               MR. HANAN:  -- involved in this?
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 1               MR. STESSMAN:  No.

 2               MR. LEWIS:  Are the trees that were

 3 there originally in 2008 the same?  There has

 4 been no change to the --

 5               MR. STESSMAN:  Yeah.  I mean, if

 6 you look through the pictures, you can see where

 7 the trees sit.  There is one right to the south

 8 -- that's the south side of the house.  That's

 9 the other side of the -- there is one, you can

10 see the long branch coming over to top in that

11 same photo, if you can go back to that.

12               Right there, that branch is the one

13 right in front of the house that restricted the

14 house from coming any further closer towards the

15 street, and then in the back side, which I don't

16 know that you have pictures of that, it was kind

17 of pinched in to keep both of those trees there.

18 And it's in a -- in a settlement kind of area

19 close to the house as well.

20               MR. HACKER:  If there are no other

21 questions, thank Mr. Stessman.

22          Anyone else wishing to speak on this

23 case?  With that, then I will close this part of

24 the meeting, and we'll put up the board for our

25 recommendation of a motion.
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 1               MR. PARKER:  I move to approve this

 2 variance, and I think that what they're looking

 3 to achieve is perfectly very reasonable.  I think

 4 the fact that they're not going all the way out

 5 to the existing five foot setback where the mass

 6 -- the big mass of the building is, is -- yes,

 7 sir?

 8               MR. WILSON:  Yeah.  Could we make

 9 the motion and second it and then have the

10 discussion?

11               MR. PARKER:  Sure.

12               MR. WILSON:  Just as a matter of

13 protocol.

14               MR. PARKER:  Absolutely.

15               MR. WILSON:  Thanks.

16               MR. PARKER:  I move we accept

17 the --

18               MR. CASSIDY:  I will second.

19               MR. WILSON:  Oh, thank you.

20               MR. HACKER:  It's been moved and

21 seconded.  We are open for discussion.

22               MR. PARKER:  Okay.  And once again,

23 I think it's because I think that the -- I think

24 that the applicant and the architect had made a

25 good faith effort to, you know, achieve what they



Kiawah BZA Meeting 21

Clark & Associates, Inc.

 1 want to achieve from a liveability point, yet not

 2 push the envelope, so to speak, all the way out

 3 to the -- where they're already at the setback.

 4 And I think removing that 145 square feet of

 5 pavers is -- also shows that, you know, they're

 6 looking to reduce the overall impact on the

 7 property.

 8               MR. HACKER:  Thank you.  Any other

 9 comments?  No other comments.  We'll call for a

10 vote.  All those in favor of the motion, say aye.

11               (Mr. Lewis, Mr. Parker,

12 Mr. Cassidy, Mr. Hanan and Mr. Hacker said aye.)

13               MR. HACKER:  All those oppose, say

14 same.

15               MS. KULICK:  No.

16               MR. HACKER:  Okay.  Motion passes,

17 five to one with Ms. Kulick voting in the

18 negative.  Thank you very much.  We'll move on to

19 our second case, which is 23 Eugenia Avenue.

20               MR. TAYLOR:  Our second case, BZA

21 application 20-00003.  This is a variance request

22 for the installation of a fence within the

23 required five foot minimal property line

24 distance.  Subject property, 23 Eugenia, TMS

25 207-08-00-014 is located in the R-1 zoning
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 1 district and is subject -- and is not subject to

 2 the purview of the Architectural Review Board.

 3               The subject lot is approximately

 4 34,000 square feet in size, and the property sits

 5 adjacent to the Kiawah Island Community

 6 Association beach access pathway.  Properties to

 7 the east is also located in the R-1 zoning

 8 district as well as properties across Eugenia

 9 Avenue in the R-1 zoning district.

10               The ordinance requires a 25 foot

11 front yard setback and a ten foot side yard

12 setback and a 25 foot rear yard setback.

13               The allowed maximum lot coverage is

14 33 percent, and the ordinance also requires that

15 fences shall be limited to landscaped hedgerows

16 of dense plant material or -- and/or wooden

17 masonry or wrought iron material, all of which

18 are required to be architecturally integrated

19 within the development of the lot or parcel, and

20 that fences shall not be permitted within five

21 feet of the side or the rear property line.

22               The existing -- the subject

23 property is now under construction and was issued

24 a build permit on August 1, 2018.  Prior to the

25 submittal of the variance application, planning
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 1 staff did meet on site with the applicant to

 2 identify potential placement for proposed fence

 3 and alternatives to proposed fence.

 4               The applicant's proposed --

 5 proposal today includes placing a wood wire fence

 6 along the western property line.  That is

 7 adjacent to the beach access wood work maintained

 8 by the Community Association.  That proposed

 9 fence is approximately five feet in height.

10               And the Community Association also

11 approved the temporary fence during the

12 construction of the single-family home.  As you

13 can see, there are a few images of the site now

14 under construction.  The beach access path is

15 right adjacent to the subject property.

16               I will go to the staff review

17 findings, and beginning with criteria A, there

18 are -- there may be extraordinary and exceptional

19 conditions pertaining to the property, and that's

20 due to the required minimum five foot fence

21 distance, the existing grade on site and the

22 adjacent beach access pathway.

23               The applicant's letter of intent

24 states that there is a heavily used public beach

25 access that runs parallel to the property line at
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 1 23 Eugenia and sections of the path are at a

 2 significantly higher elevation than those of the

 3 lot at 23 Eugenia.

 4               All retaining walls have been

 5 designed to address these significant changes of

 6 the grade that are not common to most other

 7 public/private property relationships.

 8               Criteria B, these conditions may be

 9 unique to the subject property, and they may not

10 generally apply to other properties in the

11 vicinity.  It is located within the R-1 zoning

12 district and does sit adjacent to the community

13 association's beach access path and boardwalk.

14 This is boardwalk 10.

15               The existing home at 21 Eugenia

16 Avenue located on the opposite side of that beach

17 access path does not contain a fence.

18               All other beach access paths along

19 Eugenia Avenue with the exception of the pathway

20 adjacent to the community association's

21 sandcastle did not contain fences along the

22 property line.  The fence located at the

23 sandcastle is adjacent to the parking lot in

24 which Eugenia Avenue terminates.

25               Per the applicant's letter of
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 1 intent, both the path comes close to some

 2 sections -- to some sections of the house and

 3 property line, and there are concerns about

 4 trespassing, given the proximity of the path to

 5 the property that may occur without a barrier to

 6 prevent this.

 7               More importantly, there is

 8 significant concern about potential trespassers

 9 encroaching into the property and the accidental

10 falling over these tall walls, potentially a

11 seven-foot wall in some locations.  A fence would

12 prevent this from happening.

13               Criteria C, the application of

14 ordinance to 23 Eugenia would prohibit this

15 proposed fence installation as the proposed fence

16 is isolated and would sit within the required

17 five foot minimum property line distance;

18 however, it does not unreasonably restrict the

19 utilization of the property.

20               Criteria D, the authorization of

21 this variance may be of substantial detriment to

22 the adjacent properties for the public good, and

23 the proposed fence is isolated along the property

24 line and is not architecturally integrated with

25 the development of the lot in parcel.  The
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 1 landscape plan proposed vegetations serving as

 2 buffers to be planted between the fence and the

 3 home under construction, proposed on both sides

 4 of the fence to assist with screening the fence

 5 and the home from the beach access pathway.

 6               Per the applicant's letter of

 7 intent, "both the fences would be a five-foot

 8 tall living fence, planted heavily and hiding the

 9 fence from view.  Locating the fence along the

10 property line allows room for significant

11 planting and would be in keeping with Kiawah's

12 philosophy to plant buffers in such a way that

13 appear natural."

14               Criteria E, the granting of this

15 variance would not -- would not allow the

16 establishment of a use not otherwise permitted in

17 this zoning district or extend the -- physically

18 a nonconforming use of the land or a change in

19 zoning district boundaries.

20               Criteria F, the BZA may not

21 consider profitability when considering this

22 variance request.

23               Criteria G, the need for the

24 variance may be the result of the applicant's own

25 actions since the existing residence is permitted
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 1 without the proposed fence, and the proposed

 2 fence could be modified to be integrated with

 3 design outside of the required five-foot minimum

 4 property line distance.

 5          The applicant's letter of intent

 6 contents, "the proximity of the path to the

 7 property line and location of the retaining wall

 8 is needed to manage the grade dictate that the --

 9 dictate that the proposed fence needs to be

10 located on or just inside the property line in

11 order to effectively address this potential

12 safety issue."

13               Criteria H, granting of this

14 variance may be contrary to the public or

15 neighborhood interests, may adversely affect

16 other property in the vicinity or interfere with

17 the harmony, spirit, and intent and purposes of

18 these regulations.

19               The subject property is not under

20 the purview of the Kiawah Island Architectural

21 Review Board; however, proposed plans differ from

22 existing patterns of the adjacent boardwalk and

23 beach access pathways.  Per the applicant's

24 letter of intent, approval of this request will

25 not affect adjacent properties adversely.
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 1               The final criteria I, granting of

 2 the variance may not substantially conflict with

 3 the comprehensive plan.  The Town of Kiawah

 4 Island's comprehensive plan and housing element

 5 VIII, goals one, implementation strategy states,

 6 "provide mechanisms to permit flexibility and

 7 innovation in residential project designs to

 8 promote land sufficiency and environmental

 9 protection."

10               The granting of the variance may

11 substantially conflict with the purposes of the

12 ordinance as a proposed fence may impact the

13 visual impact on the existing neighborhood;

14 however, the authorization of the variance would

15 only grant site specific permission to place the

16 fence within the five foot minimum property line

17 distance.

18               And so, what I want to do is go

19 back to just show you exactly where the location

20 of the fence is, which is here in blue proposed

21 along the property line.  They also show the

22 proposed height of that particular fence.  Here's

23 the beach access path that the Kiawah Island

24 Community Association maintains, and these are

25 retaining walls here adjacent to the proposed
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 1 fence.

 2          And the architect, the landscape

 3 architect will most likely be more in depth to

 4 discuss the design of the site.

 5               MS. KULICK:  John, before you leave

 6 that slide, how far from the KICA beach access is

 7 21 Eugenia?  The house next door which doesn't

 8 have any sort of fence.

 9               MR. TAYLOR:  That's a good

10 question.  I don't know if I have a slide that

11 shows it.  That's their property line.  I would

12 need to probably do a little homework to get the

13 exact distance of where that house may sit.

14               MR. PARKER:  If you go to this --

15 this aerial photo here that the drone took, you

16 can probably get a sense of how far that is.

17               MR. TAYLOR:  I don't want to put a

18 number to it, but yeah, I think, Mr. Parker, I

19 kind of agree.  There is the subject property to

20 the KICA.

21               MS. KULICK:  Thanks, Scott.

22               MR. CASSIDY:  Could you go back to

23 that schematic you were looking at before?  That

24 serpentine retaining wall that's there, that

25 encroaches into the ten foot setback at different
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 1 points.  Was that approved by the BZA at some

 2 point prior to me getting here?

 3               MR. TAYLOR:  No.  So that would

 4 have been approved at the staff level since this

 5 wall -- and it doesn't exceed the three feet in

 6 height minimum requirement, so those low walls

 7 can exceed encroachments in the setback.

 8               MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.

 9               MR. HACKER:  It looks like the

10 house is built right on the ten foot.

11               MR. CASSIDY:  Yes, it is.

12               MR. HACKER:  So that there's only

13 ten feet between their wall of the house and the

14 property line, and then there is another five

15 feet approximately to the KICA walk, so they're

16 really pushing the envelope with the -- using up

17 every bit of the property with.

18               MR. CASSIDY:  The same thing on the

19 other side.

20               MR. PARKER:  I have a question,

21 too, because when I went there to look at the

22 property, I couldn't get a good sense of where

23 the boardwalk is and the distance from the

24 boardwalk to the fence is going to be.  You know,

25 what is the distance from here to there.
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 1               MS. KULICK:  That was very

 2 impressive, Scott.

 3               MR. CASSIDY:  I'd like to ask a

 4 related question, too.  There's a line of stakes

 5 with orange on top of them.  That looks like the

 6 line of a fence.

 7               MR. HACKER:  So that is the line of

 8 the property because that's why -- there was

 9 someone on-site when I was there, and I said,

10 what are all these orange tip stakes, and he

11 said, that's the property line.

12               MR. CASSIDY:  Yeah.

13               MR. HACKER:  Which is the

14 approximate --

15               MR. TAYLOR:  I'm sorry, on my

16 presentation, I'm finding pictures.  You're

17 referencing these stakes?

18               MR. CASSIDY:  Yeah.

19               MR. TAYLOR:  These would be where

20 the proposed fence would be located.

21               MR. HACKER:  And the existing fence

22 that's there is on KICA property.  It's not on

23 the property of the --

24               MR. CASSIDY:  Uh-huh, yes, the

25 chain-link fence.
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 1               MR. HACKER:  Yeah, the chain-link

 2 fence.

 3               MR. TAYLOR:  Are there any more

 4 questions?  I wanted to kind of stop.  I've got a

 5 couple more notes to review on this

 6 particular matter.

 7          So if the board makes a decision today

 8 and in the event that you did consider approving

 9 this particular application, there are several

10 conditions that staff would ask for your

11 consideration, which would -- the first would be,

12 prior to the installation of the proposed fence,

13 the landscape plan that was approved should be

14 submitted to staff for review.

15          And then, number two, prior to the

16 installation of proposed fence, the applicant

17 should consult with KICA to ensure that residents

18 and guests are not impacted during the

19 construction of that fence.

20          Three, submitted as-built survey should

21 be submitted to the planning department

22 subsequent to the construction of the home and

23 fence.  And then finally, in the event that the

24 proposed trees and shrubs of the landscape plan

25 that are placed along that fence fail within one
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 1 year of installation, the applicant shall replace

 2 that vegetation.

 3               Additionally, within your

 4 materials, you received written public comments.

 5 The first letter there is from the Community

 6 Association.  The second one is from the

 7 Architectural Review Board.  You also receive one

 8 from the property owners at 21 Eugenia Avenue.

 9               And during our first case

10 presentation, Petra also gave you a second letter

11 that was submitted by the Community Association

12 on another case, so I don't want you to confuse

13 that that was related to this particular case,

14 but that was for the final case.  And that's all

15 I have --

16               MR. HACKER:  Any other questions

17 for him?

18               MR. LEWIS:  I've got a couple

19 questions.  Was the potential seven-foot drop,

20 was that in place before the construction, or did

21 the construction create that seven-foot drop, the

22 potential seven-foot drop?

23               MR. TAYLOR:  That would have been

24 adjusted in the site grade for the -- for the

25 lot.
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 1               MR. LEWIS:  Okay.  Then goes to the

 2 west, where the house was already there.  Is

 3 there also a drop on that side --

 4               MR. TAYLOR:  There's a single --

 5               MR. LEWIS:  -- of the pathway?

 6               MR. TAYLOR:  There is a huge dune

 7 in the area.  I don't know if I have a picture.

 8               MR. LEWIS:  Okay.  So the house

 9 that's already there, is there a drop on the

10 west?

11               MR. TAYLOR:  THE WITNESS:  Here?

12               MR. LEWIS:  Yeah.  From the -- the

13 walkway, the boardwalk.

14               MR. TAYLOR:  This is -- I'm going

15 to try to show you.  If you were to walk this

16 path, it climbs up pretty steep here, and then

17 falls back down.  And that's sort of at that --

18 the crest of that dune there, and then it drops

19 back off towards this mark here on the right side

20 of that picture.  I don't know if that answers

21 your question.

22               MR. CASSIDY:  To your question, I

23 mean, I had the same impression when I looked at

24 it.  It appears that they excavated to --

25               MR. LEWIS:  Dugout?
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 1               MR. CASSIDY:  Yeah, dugout to put

 2 their -- the first level of the house sort of

 3 below what the existing grade was before they got

 4 it.

 5               MR. TAYLOR:  Mr. Lewis, I would

 6 think the architect could speak to some of this

 7 site, these items.

 8               MR. LEWIS:  Okay.  Thanks.

 9               MS. KULICK:  I guess I have one

10 more question that you may or may not be able to

11 answer, John, and that is the people at 21

12 Eugenia on the other side of the people walkway

13 do not have a fence there.  Have there been, to

14 your knowledge, any safety issues of the type

15 that the applicant here is discussing raised by

16 those people at 21 Eugenia?

17               MR. TAYLOR:  It has not been

18 brought to my attention since it is a Community

19 Association maintained boardwalk, they may have

20 more knowledge on that particular question, but

21 from a zoning or a staff level here with the

22 town, no.

23               MS. KULICK:  Thank you.

24               MR. HACKER:  If there are no other

25 questions for John, we can hear from the
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 1 applicant.

 2               MS. CLINE:  This is also my first

 3 time.  Good afternoon.

 4               MR. HACKER:  And your name and

 5 address?

 6               MS. CLINE:  Sure.  Cindy Cline.  I

 7 am a landscape architect.  My personal address?

 8               MR. PARKER:  No, business.

 9               MS. CLINE:  Oh, so Wertimer & Cline

10 Landscape Architects.

11               MR. HACKER:  Can you speak more

12 into the microphone?

13               MS. CLINE:  Like that?  I'm really

14 bad at this, sorry.  Was that all the information

15 you need from me?  I mean, as far as my name and

16 all that.

17               MR. HACKER:  Have you gotten her

18 name and address?

19               COURT REPORTER:  I didn't get the

20 address.

21               MS. CLINE:  171 Church Street,

22 Charleston 29401.

23               MR. HACKER:  Thank you.

24               MS. CLINE:  I think that John did

25 an excellent job at walking through our submittal
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 1 and why we're here today.  I would just, in sum,

 2 reiterate that it was really -- the site

 3 conditions largely drove the design of the house

 4 along the property line that we are talking about

 5 today.

 6               The grade before construction, the

 7 existing condition was truly that the grade along

 8 the beach walk and between the two properties

 9 rose and fall, much as you can see in the images

10 of the existing beach walk.  And at one of the

11 pinch points in our buildable area, that dune

12 rises to approximately 17 feet roughly.

13               And the elevation at the courtyard

14 and sort of the -- the ground floor level, where

15 the house really wanted to be taking the rest of

16 the site into consideration, created that

17 difference between that high point of 17 and what

18 ended up being closer to 11 at the slab of the

19 house.

20               And so it really was site

21 conditions that led us to propose and create

22 these retaining walls around the house that

23 created that -- that plus or minus seven-foot

24 drop that we're talking about, in order to keep

25 the grade -- the existing grade back and to build
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 1 the home.

 2               So that's also kind of why we are

 3 here today.  Yes, the homeowner requested the

 4 fence because of the proximity of the path to the

 5 home site.  And if you're there, you saw how

 6 close the two are.  Trespassing is a concern for

 7 them, but equally so, if not more importantly,

 8 it's really a safety concern.

 9               And I guess, I would say that the

10 way I started to think about it and visualize it

11 is, if you're there on site, and you sort of look

12 at the relationship of the path to the home site,

13 if you visualize that construction fence no

14 longer there, you get a really good idea of what

15 that condition would be and what that change of

16 grade would be between the path and our lot.

17               The intention would be for this

18 fence to be a living fence.  We want for it to

19 disappear as much as possible, so it would be

20 heavily planted and screened.

21               Again, per our submittal, we want

22 for that -- we want to be in keeping with

23 Kiawah's philosophy of creating a natural looking

24 buffer between properties, so that there is no

25 delineating really between the two properties and
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 1 that the fence would be hidden and screened

 2 within that heavily vegetated buffer.

 3          I'm here to answer questions.

 4               MR. HACKER:  Did KICA, when you met

 5 them prior to this, did they state the same

 6 concerns about worrying about needing a fence

 7 because it might have something fall off of?

 8 Because there's five feet of their property

 9 before we get to your property.

10               MS. CLINE:  Correct, yes.  Him and

11 I spoke a couple of times way back last year,

12 last fall.  I didn't ever get the opportunity to

13 meet with him at the same time on the property.

14 That -- in our discussion that was not one of the

15 things that came up.

16               MR. HANAN:  Can you grade the

17 property such that you could mitigate the safety

18 issues associated with it instead of having to do

19 a wall like this?

20               MS. CLINE:  So we are kind of -- if

21 you look at the -- at the site plan and the areas

22 where the walls are shown closest to the fence on

23 the property line, what we're doing there is, we

24 are really trying to maintain the existing grade

25 of the beach path and the -- the grade adjacent
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 1 to the beach path up into that wall.  So the

 2 retaining walls are already serving as best we

 3 can to maintain those existing conditions outside

 4 of our property line.

 5               MS. KULICK:  Cindy, if I understood

 6 you correctly when you were speaking, and with

 7 what I've read in the materials, the idea of so

 8 much heavy planting along there, and then you

 9 would propose putting the fence kind of through

10 the shrubbery.

11               So my question is, if there is

12 going to be that much shrubbery planted there,

13 why does there need to be a fence?  Won't that

14 provide protection both for the homeowner and

15 address the safety issues that the homeowner has

16 raised?

17               MS. CLINE:  That is a really good

18 point and that has been a point of discussion

19 many times in discussions with the homeowner, and

20 I really think that there -- and, again, it's

21 about trespassing, but it really is more about

22 the safety issue.

23               I just think they are truly worried

24 and they would like -- that's why we are here

25 requesting more of a physical barrier that would
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 1 be a sure stopgap measure with something.

 2               MR. HACKER:  Seeing that there's

 3 space there for the fence at the five foot level,

 4 that should certainly solve the same thing, or

 5 you wouldn't be here at all.  So why do you want

 6 to make it on the edge where KICA's property is?

 7 It sounds like you're only doing that so you can

 8 put all the shrubbery on your side.

 9               MS. CLINE:  Well, if you look at

10 the site plan, again, you'll see that there are

11 places along the property line where the public

12 access path comes quite close to the property

13 line, and it also comes quite close to, on the

14 other side, where we proposed to build the

15 retaining wall in order to achieve the grade that

16 was necessary.

17               So if you split the difference, the

18 property line actually would serve both

19 properties best by being able to weed the

20 vegetation on both sides of it, if that makes

21 sense.

22               MR. HACKER:  If you did that on

23 both sides, would that be moving the fence back

24 into your property?

25               MS. CLINE:  As proposed now, the
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 1 fence is just inside of our property line, and as

 2 proposed, would allow -- would better allow for

 3 planting on both sides of that fence.

 4               MR. HACKER:  Any other questions?

 5 Thank you very much.

 6               MS. CLINE:  Thank you.

 7               MR. HACKER:  Anyone else wishing to

 8 speak on this?

 9               MS. SENST:  Hello.  I'm Sara Senst,

10 ARB director, 253 Gardeners Circle in Kiawah

11 Island, 29455.  The ARB is strongly opposed this

12 fence.  It is counter to our guidelines designed

13 with nature.

14               And I am familiar with Cindy's

15 work.  She's a fantastic landscape architect, and

16 I know that she would try to make it go away as

17 much as possible, but the fact of the matter is

18 it's simply too close to that KICA property line

19 to -- or the boardwalk to appear natural, even

20 though it's being proposed as a living fence with

21 plantings.

22               We also feel like it's going to

23 feel imposing to the very popular, you know, KICA

24 boardwalk, so I just wanted to say that.

25               MR. HACKER:  Have you had any
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 1 discussions with KICA about that, too?  Is that

 2 something that the ARB has talked to them about

 3 because it's -- it would be their concern also?

 4               MS. SENST:  Yes.  And I believe

 5 that I have permission to speak on behalf of Ed

 6 Monahan because I've been copied on some e-mails

 7 of his, and he has talked -- spoken with me

 8 directly about it, and they are vehemently

 9 opposed to this wall.  They believe it's going to

10 detract from the enjoyment of the popular

11 boardwalk, and everyone that enjoys the

12 boardwalk.

13               MR. HACKER:  Any other questions?

14 Thank you.

15          Anyone else wish to speak on this

16 property?  If not, then we'll call to -- this

17 discussion and we'll put it for a motion.

18               MS. KULICK:  I would like to make a

19 motion that the BZA deny this application, and if

20 it's seconded, I would like to speak to why.

21               MR. PARKER:  I will second it.  I'm

22 not trying to fall over your chair, but I second

23 this motion.

24               MR. HACKER:  It's been moved and

25 seconded, we do not approve this variance, and
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 1 it's open for discussion.

 2               MS. KULICK:  Aside from what's been

 3 raised by KICA and the ARB, which I think are

 4 important considerations for the BZA under any

 5 circumstance, having walked the property, having

 6 looked at it, I just -- it seems to me that there

 7 is really no need for this, and that's why I'm

 8 opposed to the application.

 9               MR. PARKER:  I will just go ahead

10 and weigh in as well.  I don't believe -- I

11 believe that the aesthetic concerns are not in --

12 not in keeping with the comprehensive plan of the

13 town.  I think that there are no other fences

14 along any other boardwalk, and to the best of my

15 knowledge, we've not had any other problems in

16 terms of that.

17               And we are not the public safety

18 commission, and you know, this property, if

19 somebody -- if something happens, that's going to

20 be off of KICA's boardwalk.  And so, for those

21 reasons, I just don't see that there is any

22 compelling reason to put this fence in.

23               MR. HACKER:  I tend to agree

24 because they have the opportunity to protect

25 their property by putting the fence within the
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 1 five foot -- closer to five feet away from the

 2 property line.  They can still not be worried

 3 about trespassing with that fence.  The fence

 4 does not have to be on the property line for that

 5 protection.  If there is no other discussion, I

 6 will call the question.  All those in favor of

 7 not approving this variance, say aye.

 8               (All respond with aye.)

 9               MR. HACKER:  All those oppose say

10 same.  Motion passes unanimously not to approve

11 the variance to allow your fence to be created

12 along the property line.

13                We have a third case today, John.

14               MR. TAYLOR:  You guys haven't had

15 three in forever.  Our final case of today, BZA

16 case number 20-000002.  This is a variance

17 request to increase the maximum allowable lot

18 coverage of 33 percent by approximately .71

19 percent to 33.71 percent.

20          This is for a proposed single-family

21 residence.  The subject property is in the R-1

22 zoning district, and this is subject property 43A

23 Eugenia.  The ordinance requires that the maximum

24 lot coverage for this particular lot be

25 33 percent, and there is 25 foot front, a ten
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 1 foot side setback, and the property rear setback

 2 is determined by the adjacent lots on the site

 3 line.

 4               As stated, the particular property

 5 is zoned R-1.  You can see that the adjacent

 6 properties are also zoned R-1, both adjacent to

 7 east and west and across Eugenia to the north.

 8 Here are a few areas of the existing subject

 9 property.

10               Any adjacent homes to the subject

11 property, the existing property to the rear of

12 the subject house and across Eugenia Avenue.

13 Here is the proposed structure of the new home.

14               The applicant's proposed plan is to

15 demolish the existing house to construct a new

16 home, and those proposed plans exceed the maximum

17 allowable lot coverage by approximately

18 .71 percent, roughly 111 square feet.  The

19 applicants have stated, "Ralph and Elizabeth Teal

20 have a signed contract to purchase a home on 43A

21 Eugenia from the existing owners with contingency

22 for approval of the plans.

23               This house is within the

24 jurisdiction of the Kiawah ARB, and we have

25 gained schematic approval with the ARB board,
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 1 granting two variances, a lot coverage variance

 2 and a height variance.  We are asking for .71 lot

 3 coverage variance from the Town of Kiawah Board

 4 of Zoning.

 5               And this existing home is situated

 6 closer to the street than the neighboring homes

 7 with great live oaks on the street side.  A good

 8 portion of the guest parking is located outside

 9 of the property line, and our design is to push

10 back from the road to save the oak trees and

11 better align the homes on both sides.  This is

12 the reason for this variance request."

13               The subject existing residence was

14 constructed in 1975.  They did submit to the

15 Architectural Review Board as stated for

16 conceptual review, and the Architectural Review

17 Board approved that particular request stating,

18 "the ARB approves of the proposed lot coverage

19 given the preservation that the tree grows at the

20 front of the property and the relocation of the

21 existing guest parking area, so that it is fully

22 within the property.

23               The ARB approves the proposed rear

24 setback location and setback variance for the

25 pool and deck location given the neighborhood
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 1 contacts for outdoor living space.  The board

 2 approves the long panel to be located a minimum

 3 of 30 feet from the rear property line and the

 4 ARB approves the proposed maximum height variance

 5 given the topography of the site and neighborhood

 6 context."

 7               Regarding the particular criteria

 8 of staff's review, if you look at criteria A,

 9 there may be extraordinary and exceptional

10 conditions pertaining to the property, and this

11 is due to the existing trees on the lot, and the

12 sighting of existing adjacent home.

13               The subject property contains

14 several large oak trees at the front of the lot.

15 The applicant has shared within their letter of

16 intent, this is a tear down on Eugenia that we'd

17 work with the ARB to get conceptual approval.

18          It is -- it has exceptional conditions

19 on the property with the oak trees in the front

20 of the lot and half of the existing guest parking

21 is located in the right-of-way.  The existing

22 houses on both sides of the lot are much closer

23 to the rear setback, and we are trying to align

24 the houses better.

25               Criteria B, the conditions may be
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 1 unique to the subject property and may not

 2 generally apply to other properties in the

 3 vicinity.

 4          The property is located in the R-1

 5 zoning district, and the adjacent to the

 6 properties to the east and west and to the north

 7 across Eugenia are also located within the R-1

 8 zoning district.  Existing structures in the

 9 vicinity may or may not have similar

10 encroachments based on the current setbacks, and

11 the existing single-family home on the subject

12 property was constructed in 1975 according to

13 county's records.

14               The adjacent homes were constructed

15 in 2017 and 2003, respectively, 45 Eugenia and

16 43B Eugenia.  And the applicant's letter of

17 intent states that these conditions do not

18 generally apply to other properties in the

19 vicinity.

20               Criteria C, the application of this

21 ordinance would prohibit the proposed

22 single-family construction as the proposed

23 structure exceeds the maximum allowable lot

24 coverage; however, it does not unreasonably

25 restrict the utilization of the property, and the
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 1 applicant has also stated that these conditions

 2 would unreasonably restrict the utilization of

 3 the property.

 4               Criteria D, the authorization of

 5 the variance may not be of substantial detriment

 6 to the adjacent properties or the public good,

 7 and these proposed plans relocate the parking of

 8 the home fully within the property.

 9               For the applicant's letter of

10 intent, this authorization will actually help the

11 character of the neighboring homes by allowing us

12 to better align the ocean side of the homes on

13 both sides and allow us to push a little further

14 from the street while keeping the oak trees in

15 front.

16               Criteria E, granting of the

17 variance would not allow the establishment of a

18 use not otherwise permitted in this zoning

19 district, to extend physically a nonconforming

20 use of land or change the zoning district

21 boundaries.

22               Per the applicant's letter of

23 intent, "this variance would not establish the

24 use not permitted in the zoning district nor

25 extend physically a nonconforming use, and it
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 1 will not change the zoning district boundaries."

 2               Criteria F, the BZA may not

 3 consider probability when considering this

 4 request.  In the applicant's letter of intent,

 5 "this variance would be for the betterment of the

 6 property in the neighborhood, not for profit."

 7               Criteria G, the need for this

 8 variance may be the applicant's own actions since

 9 the proposed resident is yet to be permitted and

10 constructed.  Plans could be revised to meet the

11 required maximum allowable lot coverage for 32

12 percent for the subject property; however, per

13 the applicant's letter of intent, the variance

14 request is not the result of the applicant's

15 actions.

16               Criteria H, granting of variance

17 may not be contrary to the public or neighborhood

18 interest may not adversely affect the other

19 properties in the vicinity, nor interfere with

20 the harmony, spirit, intent, and purposes of

21 these regulations.

22               December of 2019 on the 19th, the

23 Architectural Review Board did approve the

24 conceptual review, and they stated, "the

25 Architectural Review approves of the proposed lot
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 1 coverage given the preservation that the tree

 2 grows at the front of the property and relocation

 3 of existing guest parking area, so that it's

 4 fully within the property.

 5               Architectural Review Board approves

 6 the proposed rear setback location and setback

 7 variance for the pool and deck, given the

 8 location -- I'm sorry.  Architectural Review

 9 Board approves the proposed rear deck -- rear

10 setback location and setback variance for the

11 pool and deck location given the neighborhood

12 context for the outdoor living space.

13               And the border approves the lawn

14 panels to be located a minimum of 30 feet from

15 the rear property line.  The ARB approves that a

16 proposed maximum height variance given the

17 topography of the site and the neighborhood

18 context.

19               And per the applicant's letter of

20 intent, this would not be contrary to the public

21 or neighborhood interest, nor adversely affect

22 other property in the vicinity, nor interfere

23 with the harmony, spirit, intent, and purposes of

24 these regulations.

25               And the final criteria I, granting
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 1 of the variance may not substantially conflict

 2 with comprehensive planning or the purposes of

 3 the ordinance.  The proposed plans modified guest

 4 parking to be retained fully within the property

 5 boundaries, and per the applicant's letter of

 6 intent, the connecting of the variance does not

 7 conflict with the comprehensive plan of purposes

 8 of the ordinance.

 9               There is one condition outlined

10 that staff is recommending if you do consider

11 approval of this particular request, and that's

12 subsequent to the construction of the

13 single-family home, the applicant should submit

14 an as-built survey to the planning department.

15               One other letter was just received

16 today at the last hour, and so that was the

17 letter that Petra has placed before you regarding

18 the application and concerns of this particular

19 property owner.

20               MR. HACKER:  Any questions for John

21 about the staff report?

22               MR. PARKER:  I just have a general

23 question.  I'm confused now about Eugenia because

24 in years past, things that -- homes on Eugenia

25 have been stated to be not under the purview of
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 1 the Architectural Kiawah ARB.  Why is this one?

 2               MS. KULICK:  It depends on where on

 3 Eugenia --

 4               MR. PARKER:  Okay.

 5               MS. KULICK:  -- the home is.

 6               MR. PARKER:  Okay.

 7               MS. KULICK:  Parts of Eugenia are

 8 parts of it, yeah.

 9               MR. TAYLOR:  Yeah, there is.

10               MR. PARKER:  Okay.  And where is --

11 just for my opinion, where is that boundary?

12               MR. TAYLOR:  The boundary of?

13               MR. PARKER:  When is the ARB --

14               MR. TAYLOR:  There is a list of

15 categories that are sent through the Association,

16 the ARB, and they identify each property on

17 Eugenia that will say, hey, this particular lot

18 is subject to the ARB or not, so staff has a copy

19 of that.

20               MR. PARKER:  Okay.  But it's not

21 like a physical, you know, here's a crosswalk

22 and --

23               MR. TAYLOR:  No.

24               MR. PARKER:  Okay.

25               MR. HACKER:  If there are no other
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 1 questions for John, I will hear from the

 2 applicant.

 3               MR. WINDHAM:  I am Wayne Windham.

 4 I'm the architect, and my office is 1779 Main

 5 Road.  I designed this home for Ralph and

 6 Elizabeth Teal, and I worked with the ARB to try

 7 to save the oak trees in the front while trying

 8 to work with the dune in the back.

 9               The dune rises up to 19 feet and

10 drops off to 11 feet, and if you have seen the

11 site plan before, the driveway paving is in the

12 right-of-way.  And what we've done is we've taken

13 and pushed the house back so that we can save all

14 the oak trees and give them some room to

15 flourish.

16               We've got longer distances from the

17 driveway, and I think we've done a pretty good

18 job of trying to be cognizant of the tree

19 structure.  We are not -- we're close to

20 paralleling the property lines, but I think

21 there's like 10 foot on one side and 11 foot on

22 the other side.

23               MR. HACKER:  Mr. Windham, the fact

24 that you're really talking about 111 square feet,

25 it seems like that would be something that could
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 1 be found in a smaller pool deck, pervious

 2 driveways and something and you wouldn't even be

 3 here.

 4               MR. WINDHAM:  Well, the entire

 5 driveway is pervious, so it is kept up to do

 6 that.

 7               MS. KULICK:  But 111 square feet is

 8 not very much.

 9               MR. WINDHAM:  No, it's not.

10               MR. HACKER:  But I'm looking and

11 I'm thinking that it almost could save, you know,

12 the --

13               MR. WINDHAM:  So, I mean, what we

14 have to do is, they can move the house towards

15 the road.  I mean, that's not what we want to do

16 because of the trees, and also, both houses on

17 the right and left are forward from our house.

18 It's a long way --

19               MS. KULICK:  If you were to move

20 the house closer to the road, how many of those

21 trees that you took into consideration would be

22 affected?

23               MR. WINDHAM:  Short-term, probably

24 one.  But long-term, I worry about the

25 sustainability of those trees because we're going
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 1 to get into digging the root system out as

 2 opposed to just paving over the top of it.

 3               MR. HACKER:  I'm still not

 4 understanding what the trees have to do with this

 5 request.  I mean, theoretically, you could put

 6 the house in the same position that you're

 7 recommending here and make it two percent

 8 smaller, which is the amount we're talking.

 9               MR. PARKER:  Make it less than one

10 percent smaller.

11               MR. HACKER:  Yeah.  So I just don't

12 understand.

13               MR. WINDHAM:  We worked -- this is

14 a tight floor plan for five bedrooms and five and

15 a half baths.

16               MS. KULICK:  They don't want to

17 change the size of the house.

18               MR. HACKER:  Right.

19               MR. WINDHAM:  And the Teals wanted

20 to get this approved.

21               MR. HANAN:  You can't change the

22 footprint to comply with these requirements?

23               MR. WINDHAM:  Not 111 square feet.

24 I'd would have to take it out somewhere else.

25               MS. KULICK:  This question may be
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 1 better posed to the applicant themselves, but

 2 under criteria C and criteria G, what the

 3 applicant has stated appears to be exactly the

 4 opposite of what staff response is, and I wonder

 5 if you could address that because the applicant

 6 says that the property would be unreasonably

 7 restricted and staff says it would not.

 8               MR. WINDHAM:  No, unreasonable for

 9 Ralph and Elizabeth Teal.  Yep, it would be.

10               MS. KULICK:  And just in the

11 interest of full disclosure, Mr. Chair, when I

12 was walking the property yesterday, Mr. and Mrs.

13 Teal were there, and she wanted to know who I was

14 and why I was there, which was a perfectly

15 legitimate question.

16          So I explained that I was on the BZA,

17 and that I could not in any way discuss the

18 application, and she -- they were fine with that,

19 but I did see them at the property.

20               MR. HACKER:  Right.  Thank you for

21 letting us know that.

22               MR. PARKER:  I have a question.

23 Now, when I walked the property, right up against

24 the dunes, there is a set of stakes that say pool

25 on it.  Is that where you're proposing to take
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 1 the pool out to?  Because your plans here show it

 2 going pretty far out there, and then there's a

 3 thing that says -- at the dunes, it says, "grind

 4 down gradually."

 5               MR. WINDHAM:  See the square in the

 6 back?  That's the existing deck on the top --

 7               MR. PARKER:  Yes.

 8               MR. WINDHAM:  -- of the dunes.  And

 9 the pool is about five feet back from that.

10               MR. PARKER:  Okay.  So that's --

11 that's the best way I understood what you were

12 looking to do, because, I mean, this is -- I

13 mean, there are less than two feet of dunes right

14 here.

15               MR. WINDHAM:  Yeah.

16               MR. HACKER:  In your -- on that

17 drive, you show that it says that there are

18 primary drives and walks, 1555 square feet, it

19 looks like what you're -- or percent or

20 something.

21               MR. WINDHAM:  Uh-huh.

22               MR. HACKER:  And you just said that

23 that -- the driveway was pervious, so wouldn't

24 that make that number smaller?

25               MR. TAYLOR:  I think that the way
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 1 that driveway is -- interpreting the ordinance is

 2 that, whether it is impervious or pervious, it

 3 would count towards that lot coverage number

 4 based on the definition.

 5               So we would include everything,

 6 including the right-of-way of the property line

 7 to the garage, and that would include the guest

 8 parking.  So all that area, that is -- that is

 9 pervious.  It's technically counted in that.

10               MR. HACKER:  But it still is

11 counting?

12               MR. TAYLOR:  It's still counted.

13               MR. LEWIS:  So if that's true, you

14 could change the driveway and get your .71

15 reduction rather changing the house.

16               MR. HACKER:  But that's like the

17 same.  But they're saying they have to count the

18 driveway whether it is pervious or impervious.

19               MR. WINDHAM:  And we have the

20 driveway as full whether we do it pervious or

21 impervious.

22               MR. LEWIS:  Right.  My point is,

23 you can change the driveway and not change the

24 house.

25               MS. KULICK:  Right, uh-huh.
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 1               MR. LEWIS:  You get your 111 -- you

 2 get it back with the code.

 3               MR. WINDHAM:  I don't understand

 4 that.

 5               MR. HACKER:  Make the parking space

 6 smaller by --

 7               MR. WINDHAM:  Oh, all right.  All

 8 right.

 9               MS. KULICK:  Yeah.

10               MR. TAYLOR:  I also want to just

11 caution the BZA not to start to design.

12               MR. LEWIS:  Yeah.

13               MR. HACKER:  Any other questions?

14 Thank you.  Any other people that would like to

15 speak?

16               MS. PETERSON:  Denise Peterson, 45

17 Eugenia, adjacent to 43.

18               MR. HACKER:  Uh-huh.

19               MS. PETERSON:  My first concern was

20 -- and I can see by the drawings that it is not

21 encroaching on my setback; is that true?  Okay.

22               And then my second concern is, I

23 don't see where off the pool deck for that area,

24 where there would be a boardwalk leading down to

25 the beach because at present, there is no
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 1 boardwalk attached to the house, and the dunes

 2 have been trailed over.

 3               So I was just concerned as to what

 4 is happening on the other side of the pool to

 5 reach the beach.  Is that not a concern?

 6               MR. HACKER:  That's something that

 7 we would be able to answer, and that is something

 8 that you would have to address to the owner.  But

 9 we are not deciding about anything about a

10 walkway to the beach.

11               MS. PETERSON:  Oh, okay.  I'm

12 sorry.  Thank you.  That would be all my concern

13 then.

14               MR. HACKER:  Yes?

15               MS. SENST:  Sarah Senst, Kiawah

16 ARB.  I just wanted to -- to clarify your

17 question about the driveway layout.  So according

18 to the ARB guidelines, they are -- and, Wayne,

19 you can correct me if I'm wrong -- we have

20 certain parameters in terms of driveway width and

21 guest parking spaces that we require.

22               And I believe that everything has

23 been adjusted in the driveway so that all of

24 those parameters are met but not exceeded; is

25 that true?
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 1               MS. KULICK:  Yeah.

 2               MR. HACKER:  I see.  So they really

 3 cannot make it smaller.  They've already

 4 configured the driveway and the parking space to

 5 allow for the minimum that they have to have.

 6               MS. SENST:  Correct.

 7               MR. HACKER:  Thank you.  Anybody

 8 else would like to speak?  Yes.

 9               MR. KOENIG:  I'm Scott Koenig with

10 Koenig Homes, and just maybe two clarifications

11 that might help some of the questions.  One was

12 the 111 square feet and how small that sounds to

13 get it out.  And just being privy to the

14 iterative process, they did some things, just so

15 everyone sees, like the grass around the pool

16 deck instead of a lot more solid pavers.

17               There's not really a lot of

18 exterior porches and decks, and when you take a

19 step back and say, okay, this is this size home

20 generally or smaller that you see in the

21 neighborhood, it's just -- it struck it when we

22 got to that.  We are so close; can we get there.

23               We did start to look at the

24 driveway, and one point of clarification, though.

25 You can get the whole square footage out of the
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 1 driveway, but that's where the trees come in

 2 because if you pull the house closer to the road,

 3 by, let's say -- if the driveway is 10 feet wide,

 4 if you bring it 11 feet closer to the street,

 5 then you eliminate -- you eliminate the 111

 6 square feet.

 7               MR. HACKER:  That's make the

 8 driveway so you can --

 9               MR. KOENIG:  And that's what we

10 said, we can do it, but now we're affecting the

11 trees, so just to clarify, that's how that --

12               MS. KULICK:  And how many trees

13 would be affected, Scott?

14               MR. KOENIG:  I believe it's the one

15 tree that's right up against the -- there's a

16 dash line there that represents where the house

17 is currently.

18               MS. KULICK:  Uh-huh.

19               MR. KOENIG:  Oh, I can.  That backs

20 it up.  So right here is a tree, and it's got

21 sprawling limbs that come out this way.

22               MS. KULICK:  Uh-huh.

23               MR. KOENIG:  Here is the -- this is

24 the outline of the current house.  It's right up

25 against that tree.  So I'm not sure how much --
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 1 how much distance this is.  We may not have pull

 2 the house all the way back to get the 11 feet,

 3 but if -- let's say that's 11 feet, then we're

 4 right back to the house.

 5               MS. KULICK:  But it could be done?

 6               MR. KOENIG:  It could be, but then

 7 we're talking about probably moving that tree

 8 out, and that's really a long, sprawling limbed

 9 oak, not a big oak that goes in all directions.

10               And then I think what Wayne's point

11 is, then you start to affect the other -- I don't

12 know where the other trees are on this.  I know

13 this is the major one back here.  But you start

14 to get into that when you start excavating around

15 for the new construction.

16               MR. HACKER:  Thank you, Scott.

17               MR. KOENIG:  Sure.

18               MR. HACKER:  Would anyone else like

19 to speak?  If not, we will close the information

20 session and then I'll open for a motion.  Wendy?

21               MS. KULICK:  I would like to make a

22 motion that the application be denied, and if

23 it's seconded, then I will speak to my reasoning

24 behind it.

25               MR. PARKER:  I'll second it.
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 1               MR. HANAN:  I second it.

 2               MR. HACKER:  Been moved and

 3 seconded.

 4               MS. KULICK:  There are -- I have

 5 great concerns about the two sections under the

 6 various criteria that need to be -- need to be

 7 met where the property owner is clearly

 8 diametrically opposite to where the staff

 9 recommendation comes down.

10               And I appreciate all of the efforts

11 to save as many trees as possible, but I just --

12 there are other options.  Nobody is saying that

13 if this variance is denied, that these people

14 cannot build their home.

15               MR. HACKER:  I'll take the other

16 side on that.  The fact that they were trying to

17 fit it in and trying to protect the trees, yes,

18 they could move the house forward and not be here

19 and then put the big trees in jeopardy.  So for

20 111 square feet, they're saying, I'll take the --

21 come here and say, we've done everything we can

22 to fit this in except for 111 square feet.

23               MS. KULICK:  I hear you.  I was

24 just giving you my reason.

25               MR. HACKER:  I'm giving mine.  Any
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 1 other comments?

 2               MR. PARKER:  I think it's just,

 3 since right now this -- this house is tear down

 4 and that the architect can do anything that he is

 5 -- is available to him right now, I think in

 6 finding 111 square feet is not an unreasonable

 7 part of our -- thing on our part.

 8               I would also like to point out

 9 that, in the past, we had certainly denied other

10 pieces of property on -- specifically Eugenia who

11 wanted to exceed lot coverage.  You know, so we

12 do have precedence on protecting that side of the

13 island.

14               MR. HACKER:  I will remind the

15 board that we don't use precedence as any place

16 or is subject in its own criteria.

17               MR. PARKER:  I agree with that.

18 I'm just saying that, you know, that has been a

19 consideration in the past.

20               MR. HACKER:  Any other questions or

21 comments?  Okay.  All of us in favor of rejecting

22 this proposal say aye.

23               (Mr. Lewis, Mr. Parker,

24 Mr. Cassidy, Ms. Kulick and Mr. Hanan said aye.)

25               MR. HACKER:  Opposed same, aye.
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 1 Motion passes five to one with Mr. Hacker

 2 opposing.

 3          Is there any other business before us,

 4 John?

 5               MR. TAYLOR:  Yes.  I wanted to

 6 remind you that next Friday, the 28th -- I'm

 7 sorry, this Friday, we are already here.

 8               MS. KULICK:  Don't confuse me.

 9               MR. TAYLOR:  We do have one

10 continuing ed opportunity.  Many of you have

11 responded to attend that.  That's going to be C

12 level rise 101.  That's going to just talk about

13 how government policy decisions are made around C

14 level rise impacts.

15               I also want to say that we don't

16 have any cases submitted for March, and so that

17 -- that was the opportunity for us to have that

18 workshop that we had discussed at the end of last

19 year or mid of last year, rather.  I was hoping

20 Mr. Farabee was here because he was the one

21 pretty adamant about that.

22               And so I am designating that time

23 for our regularly scheduled 3:00 meeting for the

24 16th of March for that workshop, to have it.  So

25 we'll just kind of meet as a group and kind of
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 1 work through the --

 2               MR. HACKER:  16th of March; is that

 3 correct?

 4               MR. TAYLOR:  16th of March, which

 5 would be our regular March meeting date.

 6               MR. HACKER:  Okay.

 7               MR. TAYLOR:  So Petra will send out

 8 a reminder on that particular --

 9               MR. HACKER:  I'm sorry, John, what

10 is the subject of that workshop?

11               MR. TAYLOR:  So we're going to look

12 at our rules of procedures.  I know there were

13 some questions in the beginning of last year

14 about fields, things in there.

15               MR. HACKER:  Okay.

16               MR. TAYLOR:  We just never sat down

17 and talked about a few of the things that could

18 be modified based on just a review sort of.  And

19 so we'll have that as well as the criteria looked

20 at as well.

21               MR. PARKER:  On the continuing

22 education this Friday, I can't be there, but is

23 it possible for that to get recorded in some

24 fashion, so that I could come and hear it?  Even

25 if I don't get a C&E credit, I would like to hear
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 1 it.

 2               MR. TAYLOR:  Okay.  Typically, they

 3 will have those available.  I will double back

 4 and make sure --

 5               MR. PARKER:  Okay.

 6               MR. TAYLOR:  -- that those are

 7 available.  Typically they will have those

 8 available to review after.

 9               MR. HACKER:  If there is no other

10 business, the motion is adjourned.

11               MR. PARKER:  So moved.

12               MR. HANAN:  Second.

13               MR. HACKER:  Will be seconded.  All

14 in favor?

15               (All respond with aye.)

16               MR. HACKER:  We are adjourned.

17               (The BZA meeting was concluded at

18 4:23 p.m.)

19

20

21

22

23

24

25
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 1 CERTIFICATE OF REPORTER
STATE OF SOUTH CAROLINA

 2 COUNTY OF DORCHESTER

 3               I, Jennifer M. Adams, Certified
Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public for the

 4 State of South Carolina at Large, do hereby
certify that the witness whose attached in the

 5 foregoing board meeting was by me duly sworn to
testify to the truth, the whole truth, and

 6 nothing but the truth in the within-entitled
cause; that said board meeting was taken at the

 7 time and location therein stated; that the
testimony of the witness and all objections made

 8 at the time of the examination were recorded
stenographically by me and were thereafter

 9 transcribed by computer-aided transcription; that
the foregoing is a full, complete and true record

10 of the testimony of the witness and of all
objections made at the time of the examination;

11 and that the witness was given an opportunity to
read and correct said board meeting and to

12 subscribe the same.
              Should the signature of the witness

13 not be affixed to the board meeting, the witness
shall not have availed himself/herself of the

14 opportunity to sign or the signature has been
waived.

15               I further certify that I am neither
related to nor counsel for any party to the cause

16 pending or interested in the events thereof.
              Witness my hand, I have hereunto

17 affixed my official seal on March 6th, 2020 at
Charleston, Charleston County, South Carolina.

18

19

20

              Jennifer M. Adams
21               Court Reporter And Notary Public

              My commission expires: 02/07/2022
22
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design   (8)
designating   (1)
designed   (3)
designing   (1)
designs   (2)
determined   (1)
detract   (1)
detriment   (3)
development   (3)
deviations   (1)

Kiawah BZA Meeting 86

Clark & Associates, Inc.



diametrically   (1)
dictate   (2)
dictated   (1)
differ   (1)
difference   (2)
different   (2)
digging   (1)
direct   (1)
directed   (1)
directions   (1)
directly   (1)
director   (1)
disappear   (1)
disclosure   (1)
discuss   (2)
discussed   (1)
discussing   (1)
discussion   (7)
discussions   (2)
distance   (9)
distances   (1)
DISTRICT   (21)
doing   (3)
door   (1)
DORCHESTER   (1)
double   (1)
drawings   (1)
Drive   (7)
drives   (1)
driveway   (17)
driveways   (1)
drone   (1)
drop   (6)
drops   (2)
drove   (1)
due   (3)
Dugout   (2)
duly   (1)
dune   (5)
dunes   (5)

< E >
earlier   (1)
east   (3)
Ed   (2)
edge   (1)
education   (1)
effectively   (1)

effort   (2)
efforts   (2)
either   (2)
element   (1)
elevation   (3)
eliminate   (2)
Elizabeth   (3)
e-mails   (1)
enclosed   (2)
encroach   (1)
encroached   (2)
encroaches   (2)
encroaching   (3)
encroachment   (5)
encroachments   (2)
ended   (1)
enjoyment   (1)
enjoys   (1)
ensure   (1)
entire   (1)
entranceway   (1)
envelope   (2)
environmental   (1)
equally   (1)
establish   (1)
established   (1)
establishment   (2)
Eugenia   (30)
event   (2)
events   (1)
evidence   (1)
exact   (2)
exactly   (3)
examination   (2)
excavated   (1)
excavating   (1)
exceed   (7)
exceeded   (1)
exceeds   (1)
excellent   (1)
exception   (1)
exceptional   (4)
excluding   (1)
Exhibit   (2)
existing   (50)
expires   (1)
explained   (1)
explanation   (1)

extend   (3)
extending   (1)
exterior   (1)
extraordinary   (3)

< F >
fact   (4)
fact-finding   (1)
factors   (1)
facts   (1)
fail   (1)
failed   (1)
faith   (1)
fall   (6)
falling   (1)
falls   (1)
false   (1)
familiar   (2)
fantastic   (1)
far   (4)
Farabee   (2)
fashion   (1)
favor   (4)
FEBRUARY   (2)
feel   (2)
feet   (50)
fence   (60)
fences   (5)
fields   (1)
final   (5)
finally   (1)
finding   (2)
findings   (5)
fine   (1)
finish   (1)
first   (8)
fit   (4)
Fits   (1)
five   (22)
five-foot   (2)
flexibility   (1)
floor   (3)
floors   (1)
flourish   (1)
following   (1)
foot   (24)
footage   (1)
footprint   (2)

forego   (1)
foregoing   (2)
forever   (1)
forward   (2)
found   (4)
four   (4)
FRANK   (3)
Freedom   (1)
Friday   (3)
front   (14)
full   (4)
fully   (4)
further   (4)
furthermore   (1)

< G >
gained   (1)
garage   (2)
Gardeners   (1)
general   (2)
generally   (4)
getting   (1)
give   (1)
given   (12)
giving   (2)
go   (9)
goals   (1)
goes   (4)
going   (14)
good   (11)
gotten   (1)
government   (1)
grade   (14)
gradually   (1)
grant   (1)
granted   (1)
granting   (10)
grass   (1)
great   (2)
grind   (1)
ground   (1)
group   (2)
grows   (2)
guess   (2)
guest   (8)
guests   (1)
guidelines   (2)
guys   (1)
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< H >
HACKER   (71)
half   (2)
Hall   (1)
HANAN   (10)
hand   (2)
happening   (2)
happens   (2)
harmony   (3)
HARRISON   (1)
hear   (8)
hearing   (1)
heated   (2)
heavily   (5)
heavy   (1)
hedgerows   (1)
height   (6)
Hello   (1)
help   (2)
hereunto   (1)
hey   (1)
hidden   (1)
hiding   (1)
high   (1)
higher   (1)
himself/herself   (1)
holding   (1)
home   (24)
homeowner   (4)
homes   (9)
homework   (1)
honest   (1)
hope   (2)
hoping   (2)
hour   (1)
hours   (1)
house   (74)
houses   (3)
housing   (1)
huge   (1)

< I >
idea   (2)
identify   (2)
images   (3)
impact   (4)
impacted   (1)

impacts   (1)
impervious   (3)
implementation   (1)
important   (1)
importantly   (2)
imposing   (1)
impression   (1)
impressive   (1)
improve   (1)
include   (2)
included   (2)
includes   (1)
including   (3)
increase   (1)
Information   (4)
initial   (3)
innovation   (1)
inset   (1)
insets   (1)
inside   (2)
inspection   (1)
installation   (5)
integrated   (3)
intent   (23)
intention   (1)
interest   (3)
interested   (1)
interests   (2)
interfere   (3)
interpreting   (1)
involved   (1)
iron   (1)
ISLAND   (19)
Island's   (1)
isolated   (2)
issue   (2)
issued   (1)
issues   (4)
items   (2)
iterative   (1)
its   (1)

< J >
JAY   (2)
JENNIFER   (3)
jeopardy   (1)
job   (2)
JOE   (2)

JOHN   (14)
JR   (2)
jurisdiction   (1)

< K >
keep   (2)
keeping   (4)
kept   (1)
KIAWAH   (24)
Kiawah's   (2)
KICA   (10)
KICA's   (2)
kind   (10)
know   (21)
knowledge   (3)
known   (1)
KOENIG   (9)
KULICK   (38)

< L >
lack   (1)
land   (4)
landscape   (8)
landscaped   (2)
large   (3)
largely   (1)
lawn   (1)
layout   (2)
leading   (1)
leave   (1)
led   (1)
left   (2)
legal   (1)
legitimate   (1)
letter   (23)
letting   (1)
level   (7)
LEWIS   (17)
likelihood   (2)
limbed   (1)
limbs   (1)
limited   (3)
line   (41)
lines   (1)
list   (1)
little   (2)
live   (10)
liveability   (1)

living   (5)
LLC   (1)
located   (14)
Locating   (1)
LOCATION   (14)
locations   (2)
long   (5)
longer   (2)
long-term   (1)
look   (8)
looked   (3)
looking   (7)
looks   (3)
lot   (38)
lots   (1)
low   (1)

< M >
main   (4)
maintain   (2)
maintained   (3)
maintains   (1)
major   (1)
manage   (1)
March   (6)
mark   (1)
masonry   (1)
mass   (2)
massing   (1)
material   (2)
materials   (2)
matter   (3)
maximum   (10)
mean   (10)
measure   (1)
mechanisms   (1)
meet   (5)
meeting   (12)
meetings   (1)
MEMBER   (2)
MEMBERS   (2)
mentioned   (1)
met   (5)
microphone   (1)
mid   (1)
middle   (1)
mine   (1)
minimal   (1)
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minimum   (9)
minus   (1)
minutes   (2)
missing   (1)
mitigate   (1)
modifications   (2)
modified   (3)
modify   (1)
Monahan   (1)
MORRIS   (2)
motion   (12)
motive   (1)
move   (8)
moved   (4)
moving   (2)
MUNICIPAL   (1)

< N >
name   (5)
narrowing   (1)
natural   (3)
nature   (1)
necessary   (1)
need   (11)
needed   (1)
needing   (1)
needs   (1)
negative   (1)
neighborhood   (11)
neighboring   (2)
neither   (1)
never   (1)
NEVIL   (1)
new   (5)
nice   (1)
nonconforming   (3)
normal   (1)
north   (7)
Notary   (2)
notes   (1)
nuances   (1)
NUMBER   (12)
numerous   (1)

< O >
oak   (15)
oaks   (6)
oath   (2)

objections   (2)
obviously   (1)
occur   (1)
ocean   (1)
office   (1)
official   (1)
Oh   (5)
Okay   (24)
once   (1)
one-story   (1)
on-site   (1)
open   (7)
operates   (1)
opinion   (1)
opportunity   (6)
oppose   (2)
opposed   (5)
opposing   (1)
opposite   (3)
options   (2)
orally   (1)
orange   (2)
order   (6)
ordinance   (14)
original   (8)
originally   (2)
outdoor   (2)
outline   (1)
outlined   (1)
outside   (3)
overall   (2)
OWNER   (6)
owners   (3)

< P >
p.m   (1)
panel   (1)
panels   (1)
paragraph   (3)
parallel   (1)
paralleling   (1)
parameters   (2)
parcel   (2)
pardon   (1)
PARKER   (34)
parking   (11)
part   (4)
particular   (25)

particularly   (1)
Parts   (2)
party   (1)
passes   (3)
path   (15)
paths   (1)
pathway   (5)
pathways   (1)
patterns   (2)
pavers   (4)
paving   (2)
pending   (1)
people   (5)
percent   (16)
percentage   (2)
perfectly   (2)
permission   (2)
permit   (3)
permitted   (7)
person   (2)
personal   (1)
pertaining   (3)
pertinent   (1)
pervious   (7)
PETERSON   (4)
Petra   (3)
philosophy   (2)
photo   (2)
physical   (2)
physically   (3)
picture   (3)
pictures   (3)
piece   (2)
pieces   (1)
pinch   (1)
pinched   (1)
place   (3)
placed   (2)
placement   (3)
places   (2)
placing   (1)
plan   (17)
planning   (4)
plans   (11)
plant   (2)
planted   (4)
planting   (3)
plantings   (1)

please   (2)
plus   (1)
point   (10)
points   (2)
policy   (1)
pool   (10)
popular   (2)
porches   (1)
portion   (1)
posed   (1)
position   (1)
possible   (6)
potential   (5)
potentially   (1)
precedence   (2)
PRESENT   (5)
presentation   (3)
presented   (1)
presenting   (1)
preservation   (2)
preserve   (3)
preserving   (1)
pretty   (4)
prevent   (2)
primarily   (1)
primary   (2)
principal   (4)
prior   (6)
privy   (1)
probability   (1)
probably   (4)
problems   (1)
procedure   (1)
procedures   (2)
proceed   (1)
process   (1)
profit   (2)
profitability   (2)
prohibit   (3)
project   (4)
promote   (1)
properties   (18)
PROPERTY   (108)
proposal   (2)
propose   (2)
proposed   (52)
proposing   (1)
protect   (2)
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protecting   (1)
protection   (3)
protocol   (2)
provide   (3)
provided   (1)
proximity   (3)
public   (15)
public/private   (1)
pull   (2)
purchase   (1)
purposes   (8)
purview   (5)
push   (3)
pushed   (1)
pushing   (1)
put   (8)
putting   (2)

< Q >
quasi-judicial   (1)
question   (20)
questions   (17)
quite   (2)
quoted   (1)

< R >
R-1   (11)
R-2   (5)
raise   (1)
raised   (3)
Ralph   (3)
reach   (1)
read   (3)
really   (17)
rear   (12)
reason   (3)
reasonable   (2)
reasoning   (1)
reasons   (1)
rebuttal   (1)
receive   (1)
received   (2)
recommendation   (2)
recommended   (1)
recommending   (2)
record   (2)
recorded   (2)
records   (2)

reduce   (2)
reducing   (1)
reduction   (4)
referencing   (1)
regarding   (4)
regular   (1)
regularly   (1)
regulations   (3)
reiterate   (1)
rejecting   (1)
related   (4)
relationship   (3)
relationships   (1)
relocate   (1)
relocation   (2)
remind   (2)
reminder   (1)
removed   (1)
removing   (2)
replace   (1)
replacing   (1)
report   (1)
REPORTED   (1)
REPORTER   (5)

REPRESENTATIVE 
 (3)
represents   (1)
request   (17)
requested   (1)
requesting   (1)
requests   (1)
require   (3)
required   (12)
requirement   (1)
requirements   (2)
requires   (4)
residence   (4)
resident   (1)
Residential   (4)
residents   (1)
respectively   (1)
respond   (2)
responded   (1)
response   (1)
rest   (1)
restrict   (4)
restricted   (2)

result   (4)
retained   (1)
retaining   (7)
review   (30)
reviewed   (1)
reviewing   (1)
reviews   (1)
revised   (1)
RICHARD   (1)
right   (27)
right-of-way   (3)
rise   (2)
rises   (2)
road   (5)
RON   (2)
room   (6)
root   (1)
rose   (1)
roughly   (3)
rules   (1)
runs   (1)

< S >
safety   (7)
sandcastle   (2)
Sara   (1)
Sarah   (1)
sat   (1)
save   (8)
saved   (2)
saving   (1)
saw   (1)
saying   (4)
says   (6)
SC   (2)
scheduled   (1)
schematic   (2)
SCOTT   (7)
screened   (2)
screening   (1)
seal   (1)
second   (12)
seconded   (6)
section   (1)
sections   (4)
see   (13)
Seeing   (1)
seen   (1)

sees   (1)
send   (1)
sense   (3)
SENST   (6)
sent   (1)
sentence   (1)
serpentine   (1)
serve   (1)
serving   (2)
session   (1)
set   (1)
setback   (49)
setbacks   (3)
settlement   (1)
seven-foot   (5)
shadow   (2)
shared   (2)
shifted   (1)
shifting   (1)
SHORTHAND   (2)
Short-term   (1)
shots   (1)
show   (5)
showing   (2)
shown   (2)
shows   (3)
shrubbery   (3)
shrubs   (1)
side   (42)
sides   (7)
sighting   (1)
sign   (1)
signature   (2)
signed   (1)
significant   (3)
significantly   (1)
similar   (2)
simply   (1)
single   (1)
single-family   (6)
sir   (1)
sit   (5)
site   (24)
sits   (2)
sitting   (1)
situated   (1)
size   (4)
slab   (1)
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slide   (3)
small   (1)
smaller   (7)
solid   (1)
solve   (1)
somebody   (1)
sorry   (7)
sort   (6)
sounds   (2)
South   (11)
southeast   (1)
southwest   (1)
space   (6)
spaces   (1)
speak   (13)
speaking   (3)
specific   (1)
specifically   (1)
spill   (1)
spirit   (3)
split   (1)
spoke   (1)
spoken   (1)
sprawling   (2)
square   (16)
STAFF   (24)
staff's   (1)
stakes   (4)
stand   (3)
standard   (2)
standards   (4)
standing   (1)
start   (6)
started   (1)
state   (5)
stated   (14)
statements   (1)
states   (5)
stating   (2)
steep   (1)
stenographically   (1)
step   (1)
STESSMAN   (12)
stop   (1)
stopgap   (1)
story   (4)
strategy   (1)
street   (9)

stretched   (1)
strongly   (1)
struck   (1)
structure   (13)
structures   (2)
subject   (28)
submit   (2)
submittal   (4)
submitted   (5)
subscribe   (1)
subsequent   (2)
substantial   (3)
substantially   (4)
success   (1)
sufficiency   (1)
suite   (1)
sum   (1)
support   (1)
supported   (1)
sure   (8)
survey   (2)
sustainability   (1)
sworn   (2)
system   (1)

< T >
take   (5)
taken   (2)
talk   (1)
talked   (3)
talking   (6)
tall   (2)
TAYLOR   (40)
Teal   (4)
Teals   (1)
tear   (2)
technically   (1)
temporary   (1)
ten   (5)
tend   (1)
tends   (1)
terminates   (1)
terms   (2)
testify   (1)
testimony   (3)
Thank   (17)
Thanks   (4)
theoretically   (1)

thereof   (1)
thing   (4)
things   (5)
think   (22)
thinking   (1)
third   (1)
three   (12)
tight   (1)
time   (8)
times   (2)
tip   (1)
TMS   (2)
today   (11)
today's   (1)
top   (4)
topography   (2)
TOWN   (8)
trailed   (1)
transcribed   (1)
transcription   (1)
tree   (7)
trees   (29)
trespassers   (1)
trespassing   (4)
true   (5)
truly   (2)
TRUST   (1)
truth   (3)
try   (3)
trying   (8)
two   (16)
type   (2)
Typically   (2)

< U >
Uh-huh   (6)
unanimously   (1)
underdeveloped   (1)
understand   (5)
understanding   (1)
Understood   (3)
unique   (3)
unreasonable   (2)
unreasonably   (5)
use   (7)
utilization   (4)

< V >

variance   (53)
variances   (2)
various   (1)
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                 1                  MR. HACKER:  I would like to call

                 2    to order the February 24th, 2020, meeting of the

                 3    Town of Kiawah Island Board of Zoning Appeals.

                 4                  Board members who will be -- who

                 5    are here to hear the cases presented today are

                 6    Morris Hanan, Wendy Kulick, Frank Cassidy, Scott

                 7    Parker, and Jay Lewis, and myself, Ron Hacker.

                 8    And we hope that Ben Farabee will be here, but he

                 9    is the one missing right now.

                10             We also have with us our staff member,

                11    John Taylor, Jr., and attorney for the BZA, Joe

                12    Wilson.

                13                  Case findings for this and any BZA

                14    meetings are available for public review and

                15    inspection during normal business hours here at

                16    Town Hall.

                17                  At this time, I'd like to ask those

                18    of you in the audience if you are familiar with

                19    the procedures of the BZA.  I have -- I can read

                20    to you the -- all the nuances of the committee,

                21    but if you understand it, I will forego that, and

                22    we will start the meeting.

                23                  If anyone would like to hear the

                24    full explanation of how we -- how the board

                25    operates, raise their hand.
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                 1                  All right.  We'll move right on

                 2    with the -- because today's hearing is a public

                 3    fact-finding meeting, we are in compliance with

                 4    the Freedom of Information Act and South Carolina

                 5    code 6-29-70.  Because this is a quasi-judicial

                 6    body, everything said in the meeting must be

                 7    complete, true, and accurate.

                 8                  All of the information provided to

                 9    the BZA is considered evidence, and this board

                10    may certify contempt of circuit court if false

                11    statements are made either in writing or orally.

                12    Because of this, each person who wishes to

                13    address the board will be sworn in.

                14             In order to accomplish this, I'd like

                15    those wishing to speak to please stand as a

                16    group, if you would.  I'd like our attorney

                17    Mr. Wilson to administer the oath.

                18                  (Mr. Wilson places everyone

                19    standing under oath.)

                20                  MR. HACKER:  Thank you.  I should

                21    now call case BZA 20-00004 at 155 Kiawah Island

                22    Club Drive.  Staff will present facts pertinent

                23    to the case.  I shall then call the applicant to

                24    address the case.  The applicant shall please

                25    stand up and state your name and current address
�
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                 1    for the record before presenting testimony.

                 2             I will then ask those speaking either in

                 3    support or against the case if they would do the

                 4    following, to stand and do the same procedure.

                 5    Each person speaking after the initial

                 6    presentation by the staff will have two minutes,

                 7    and then the applicant will have two minutes to

                 8    provide rebuttal.  Thank you.

                 9             John, the staff findings?

                10                  MR. TAYLOR:  Thank you.  Our first

                11    case this afternoon is BZA case 20-000004.  This

                12    is a variance request for the reduction of the

                13    required 30 foot side setback for a proposed

                14    one-story addition that is connecting existing

                15    carriage house in a principal structure.  The

                16    address is 155 Kiawah Island Club Drive, TMS

                17    number 209-00-00-064.

                18             The subject property is under the

                19    purview of the ARB, the Architectural Review

                20    Board and if zone R-2 and is within the

                21    underdeveloped land of Kiawah Island.  The

                22    ordinance requires that there is a 20-feet front

                23    setback, a 25-foot left side side yard setback

                24    and a right side yard setback, and a 30-foot rear

                25    yard setback.  That will allow the maximum lot
�
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                 1    coverage of 33 percent for this subject property.

                 2                  Existing yard coverage is currently

                 3    32.1 percent, and the structure is a legal

                 4    conforming structure.  It was constructed in

                 5    2009, and that's according to Charleston County

                 6    records, and the subject property is roughly

                 7    120,000 square feet.

                 8                  The applicant's proposed plans

                 9    modify the existing single-family structure by

                10    adding an enclosed heated connecter between the

                11    principal structure in the carriage house

                12    replacing the existing open bridge connecter.

                13                  Here are the zoning as stated is

                14    R-2, a few aerial shots of the site, and this is

                15    showing the existing site here.  The entranceway

                16    -- the picture to the right shows the carriage

                17    house and garage below, and there is an open

                18    bridge as existing today.

                19                  According to the existing carriage

                20    house, that currently encroaches into the

                21    required 30-foot side setback by approximately

                22    five feet and approximately four feet into the

                23    required front setback, and that was granted

                24    approval by the Kiawah Island Architectural

                25    Review Board.
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                 1                  The Kiawah Island Architectural

                 2    Review Board, they may approve deviations from a

                 3    particular standard on the Exhibit 13.3,

                 4    according to the general lot standard.  And those

                 5    may not exceed 20 percent of the standards.  The

                 6    lot we mentioned in the setbacks exceed 10

                 7    percent of the standards for maximum lot

                 8    coverage.  That's excluding the number of floors.

                 9                  The applicant's letter of intent

                10    states both the plan works best in relationship

                11    to the carriage house, if the addition goes three

                12    feet over the side yard setback line.

                13             And the ARB has well approved this

                14    variance request stating that, "the variance to

                15    allow the connector addition to the encroached

                16    three feet -- to encroached three feet into the

                17    side yard setback is approved, given the original

                18    placement of the home that save trees and the

                19    likelihood that this variance would have been

                20    approved on the initial Architectural Review

                21    Board review".

                22                  There are a few more images, and I

                23    will go through the actual findings -- staff

                24    findings, but I just want to point out here on

                25    the exhibit, that connector piece is here, the
�
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                 1    existing carriage house up on the corner.  This

                 2    is the one story proposed addition that's

                 3    connecting the principal structure to the

                 4    carriage house.

                 5             Currently, it's an open bridge, and that

                 6    variance request is this particular area that's

                 7    three feet over the setback.  The existing

                 8    carriage house sits approximately five feet over

                 9    that setback on the side, and then I think four

                10    feet to the front setback.

                11             The applicant as well included proposed

                12    plans for the particular area.  This is an

                13    elevation showing that particular added one foot

                14    -- I'm sorry, one story connector piece.

                15             And so regarding the staff reviews of

                16    this particular case, regarding criteria A, the

                17    staff has found that there may be extraordinary

                18    and exceptional conditions pertaining to this

                19    particular property, and that is because of the

                20    required setbacks including the existing

                21    encroachment that happens already into the 20

                22    foot front setback and to the 30 foot side

                23    setback.

                24             The existing structure was completed and

                25    -- or established in 2009.  In addition, the
�
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                 1    applicant has stated, "when designing the site

                 2    plan and house footprint, compromises were made

                 3    in effort to save two live oak trees in the front

                 4    and back at the center of the house, and five

                 5    others were saved along the south of the lot

                 6    including a large oak cluster.

                 7             This stretched out the floor plan

                 8    layout.  The location of the carriage house

                 9    worked best to spill over the north side yard

                10    setback by five feet.  The ARB approved the

                11    setback variance doing their design review in

                12    2008."

                13                  Criteria B, the staff has found

                14    that these conditions may be unique to the

                15    subject property and may not apply to others in

                16    the vicinity.  This project -- this property is

                17    located in the R-2 zoning district and adjacent

                18    properties to the north, south and across Kiawah

                19    Island Club Drive are also within the R-2 zoning

                20    district.

                21                  Existing structures within the

                22    vicinity may or not have similar encroachment

                23    patterns, and per the applicant's letter of

                24    intent, "the house -- the house designs on Kiawah

                25    are likely affected by the efforts to preserve as
�
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                 1    many live oak trees on the site as possible.  In

                 2    our case, the main section of the house was

                 3    limited to 20 feet -- 28 feet deep from saving

                 4    two nice live oaks that now blanket the house,

                 5    which is a type fit for a Kiawah Island house.

                 6    We also shifted the house to the north to

                 7    preserve four live oaks and a big oak cluster on

                 8    the south side of the lot."

                 9                  Criteria C, staff has found that

                10    this application of ordinance to 155 Kiawah

                11    Island Club Drive, it would prohibit the proposed

                12    enclosed heated connection between the principal

                13    structure in the carriage house, both the

                14    existing structure and the proposed modifications

                15    as they do sit within that required 30 foot side

                16    setback; however, it doesn't unreasonably

                17    restrict utilization of the property.

                18             The applicant has also stated that,

                19    given the carriage house was approved to be five

                20    feet over the setback during the original ARB

                21    review, the addition tends to slide over the

                22    setback to center with insets on the carriage

                23    house, and so for aesthetics, we are holding the

                24    addition back two feet from the south corner of

                25    the carriage house.  This is one of the factors
�
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                 1    in this need for the side yard setback variance.

                 2                  Criteria D, the authorization of

                 3    the variance may not be of substantial detriment

                 4    to the adjacent properties of the public good.

                 5    There is an existing side yard setback

                 6    encroachment, and the proposed modifications of

                 7    approximately two foot less in the existing side

                 8    yard encroachment of the existing carriage house.

                 9                  The subject property is heavily

                10    landscaped creating a visual buffer from the

                11    street, and furthermore, numerous homes along

                12    Kiawah Island Club Drive have connectors between

                13    the primary house and carriage house.

                14                  Per the applicant's letter of

                15    intent, we have a deep 30 foot side setback on

                16    the north side and the proposed addition will

                17    fall in the shadow of the massing of the existing

                18    carriage house, which is 5 feet over the setback

                19    line, failed in such that it is three feet over

                20    the setback line.

                21                  And the addition would not be

                22    visible from the street being inset on the

                23    carriage house.  The area pavers will be removed

                24    on the south side of an addition and new

                25    landscape will be added to the area.
�
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                 1                  Criteria E, the BZA may not

                 2    consider profitability when considering this

                 3    variance request, and the applicant has stated

                 4    that the property owners wanted weather-protected

                 5    connection room between the main house and the

                 6    guest suite over the carriage house.  The motive

                 7    is not related to any issues of profit from the

                 8    property.

                 9                  Criteria G, the need for the

                10    variance may be the result of the applicant's own

                11    actions.  Since the existing residence is

                12    conforming, the existing structure could be

                13    maintained without the need for a variance.

                14                  However, per the applicant's letter

                15    of intent, the original site design was dictated

                16    by the locations of the live oak trees, the

                17    narrowing of the main body depth, and the

                18    shifting of the house to the north as much as

                19    possible to preserve four live oaks off the

                20    southwest corner and the big oak cluster off the

                21    southeast corner.

                22                  Two live oaks in the middle of the

                23    lot were saved but limited to the house there.

                24    This is why the ARB supported this approach due

                25    to preserving same live oak trees.
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                 1                  Criteria H, the granting of this

                 2    variance may not be contrary to the public or

                 3    neighborhood interests.  As stated, the

                 4    Architectural Review Board did approve this

                 5    particular project, this particular variance

                 6    request, and they stated that the variance to

                 7    allow the connector to add -- to allow the

                 8    connector addition to encroach into the three

                 9    feet into the side yard setback is approved.

                10                  And that was given to the original

                11    placement of the home to save trees in the

                12    likelihood that this would have been approved at

                13    the original submittal for the initial review

                14    rather.  Also, the applicant has shared our

                15    variance would not adversely affect other

                16    properties in the vicinity.

                17                  The proposed addition has less of a

                18    setback over extending adjacent carriage house

                19    and will fall into the shadow visually of the

                20    carriage house, not visible from the street.

                21                  The final criteria, the granting on

                22    the variance may not substantially conflict with

                23    the comprehensive plans and purposes of the

                24    ordinance, and the applicant's proposed plan does

                25    meet the "prior lot coverage standards with the
�
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                 1    added connector and additionally reduce the

                 2    overall lot coverage from approximately 32.1

                 3    percent to 31.6 percent."

                 4                  And per the applicant's letter of

                 5    intent, "our variance requests were reviewed and

                 6    approved by the Architectural Review Board, which

                 7    comments included the board has approved this

                 8    connector room as shown on the original review.

                 9    Our variance should not conflict with the

                10    purposes of the BZA zoning ordinance based on the

                11    ARB's approval.

                12                  And so, based on those particular

                13    items, the case number BZA20-00004, the next

                14    request for a reduction of this required 30 foot

                15    side setback for that one story proposed carriage

                16    house addition or connector, rather, the BZA can

                17    approve this, approve with conditions or deny.

                18                  Are there any particular questions

                19    of staff?

                20                  MR. CASSIDY:  I have one question.

                21    John, paragraph 5 on the staff review, which you

                22    quoted earlier, I just want to make sure I

                23    understand that.  When this house was originally

                24    built, it did not require -- the encroachment of

                25    the carriage house and did not require approval
�
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                 1    because it met those criteria A and B that were

                 2    there?

                 3                  MR. TAYLOR:  So the ARB would have

                 4    purview to exceed whatever would be permitted by

                 5    the zoning ordinance based on the agreement

                 6    within the development agreement, and so this

                 7    particular lot would have been subject to those

                 8    standards.

                 9             And so they can go over whatever those

                10    minimum requirements would be, whether it's a

                11    setback adjustment.  The ARB has to approve it,

                12    so this particular house would have met those.

                13                  MR. CASSIDY:  As long as it's

                14    within those A and B criteria?

                15                  MR. TAYLOR:  Correct.

                16                  MR. CASSIDY:  Does that mean that

                17    this -- because we're considering this addition

                18    here today, does that mean that this -- this new

                19    addition is beyond those A and B criteria?

                20                  MR. TAYLOR:  That -- I don't know

                21    the exact percentage of what that would be, but I

                22    think it still would be beyond -- I don't know

                23    exactly what number that percentage would be, but

                24    we're reviewing it because of the variances, that

                25    it would have gone beyond the existing permit.
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                 1                  MR. CASSIDY:  Understood.

                 2                  MR. PARKER:  I have a question

                 3    about the lot coverage, which is decreasing.  Is

                 4    that primarily a result of them removing the 145

                 5    square feet of pavers as part of this project?

                 6                  MR. TAYLOR:  Yes, so they're -- in

                 7    their reduction, they're reducing the one story

                 8    going up because it would change the existing --

                 9                  MR. PARKER:  Three.  Right.

                10                  MR. TAYLOR:  Yeah.

                11                  MS. KULICK:  My question is on the

                12    same paragraph that Frank was talking about, and

                13    I'm not sure if it's best directed at you or at

                14    the applicant, but the last sentence of that

                15    paragraph says, "the applicant's letter of intent

                16    states the plan works best in relationship to the

                17    carriage house if the addition goes three feet

                18    over the side setback line."

                19                  MR. TAYLOR:  Yeah, but I would

                20    direct that as a design --

                21                  MS. KULICK:  Okay.

                22                  MR. TAYLOR:  -- question to the

                23    applicant.

                24                  MS. KULICK:  Okay.  I will do that.

                25    Thanks, John.
�
                                                                      17



                 1                  MR. HACKER:  If there are no

                 2    further questions, we'll hear from the applicant.

                 3                  MR. STESSMAN:  I am the applicant.

                 4                  MR. HACKER:  Before we do that,

                 5    state your name and address.

                 6                  MR. STESSMAN:  First time here, so

                 7    pardon my lack of --

                 8                  MR. HACKER:  That's okay.

                 9                  MR. STESSMAN:  -- protocol.  I'm

                10    Dennis Stessman, and we are asking for the

                11    approval.  Our architect was the original

                12    architect on the home.  We bought the home as it

                13    was, so we bought it a couple of years after it

                14    was completed.

                15                  If you're going to ask me that

                16    question, why does that fit best?  Fits best was

                17    kind of what we're looking to accomplish with the

                18    room.  We're trying to have a sitting room of a

                19    reasonable size.

                20                  MS. KULICK:  When you finish, I

                21    will ask my question.

                22                  MR. STESSMAN:  Okay.  But that's --

                23    that's what -- I'm just here to make our request

                24    known, so I'm open to any questions.

                25                  MS. KULICK:  You said what works
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                 1    best.  What other options were considered before

                 2    this one?  And if the board votes not to approve

                 3    the variance, will you proceed with different

                 4    plans, or will you not do anything?

                 5                  MR. STESSMAN:  The honest answer to

                 6    that is, we hope that these get approved

                 7    obviously.

                 8                  MS. KULICK:  I understand.

                 9                  MR. STESSMAN:  Our original intent

                10    was to move it out all the way to the side, to

                11    the same -- to the same setback as the house, the

                12    carriage house.  Our architect said that we'll be

                13    -- we'll be encroaching that setback space

                14    anyway.  It would be better, and we'll get --

                15    we'll have a better chance of success with the

                16    ARB, particularly.

                17             He was hoping that I wouldn't have to

                18    come here.  But he said, if we get the ARB's

                19    approval, in order to do that, the setback only

                20    being three feet will improve the aesthetics of

                21    the addition, and so that's what he recommended.

                22                  MR. HANAN:  But there is no impact

                23    on live oaks or any other trees --

                24                  MR. STESSMAN:  No.

                25                  MR. HANAN:  -- involved in this?
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                 1                  MR. STESSMAN:  No.

                 2                  MR. LEWIS:  Are the trees that were

                 3    there originally in 2008 the same?  There has

                 4    been no change to the --

                 5                  MR. STESSMAN:  Yeah.  I mean, if

                 6    you look through the pictures, you can see where

                 7    the trees sit.  There is one right to the south

                 8    -- that's the south side of the house.  That's

                 9    the other side of the -- there is one, you can

                10    see the long branch coming over to top in that

                11    same photo, if you can go back to that.

                12                  Right there, that branch is the one

                13    right in front of the house that restricted the

                14    house from coming any further closer towards the

                15    street, and then in the back side, which I don't

                16    know that you have pictures of that, it was kind

                17    of pinched in to keep both of those trees there.

                18    And it's in a -- in a settlement kind of area

                19    close to the house as well.

                20                  MR. HACKER:  If there are no other

                21    questions, thank Mr. Stessman.

                22             Anyone else wishing to speak on this

                23    case?  With that, then I will close this part of

                24    the meeting, and we'll put up the board for our

                25    recommendation of a motion.
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                 1                  MR. PARKER:  I move to approve this

                 2    variance, and I think that what they're looking

                 3    to achieve is perfectly very reasonable.  I think

                 4    the fact that they're not going all the way out

                 5    to the existing five foot setback where the mass

                 6    -- the big mass of the building is, is -- yes,

                 7    sir?

                 8                  MR. WILSON:  Yeah.  Could we make

                 9    the motion and second it and then have the

                10    discussion?

                11                  MR. PARKER:  Sure.

                12                  MR. WILSON:  Just as a matter of

                13    protocol.

                14                  MR. PARKER:  Absolutely.

                15                  MR. WILSON:  Thanks.

                16                  MR. PARKER:  I move we accept

                17    the --

                18                  MR. CASSIDY:  I will second.

                19                  MR. WILSON:  Oh, thank you.

                20                  MR. HACKER:  It's been moved and

                21    seconded.  We are open for discussion.

                22                  MR. PARKER:  Okay.  And once again,

                23    I think it's because I think that the -- I think

                24    that the applicant and the architect had made a

                25    good faith effort to, you know, achieve what they
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                 1    want to achieve from a liveability point, yet not

                 2    push the envelope, so to speak, all the way out

                 3    to the -- where they're already at the setback.

                 4    And I think removing that 145 square feet of

                 5    pavers is -- also shows that, you know, they're

                 6    looking to reduce the overall impact on the

                 7    property.

                 8                  MR. HACKER:  Thank you.  Any other

                 9    comments?  No other comments.  We'll call for a

                10    vote.  All those in favor of the motion, say aye.

                11                  (Mr. Lewis, Mr. Parker,

                12    Mr. Cassidy, Mr. Hanan and Mr. Hacker said aye.)

                13                  MR. HACKER:  All those oppose, say

                14    same.

                15                  MS. KULICK:  No.

                16                  MR. HACKER:  Okay.  Motion passes,

                17    five to one with Ms. Kulick voting in the

                18    negative.  Thank you very much.  We'll move on to

                19    our second case, which is 23 Eugenia Avenue.

                20                  MR. TAYLOR:  Our second case, BZA

                21    application 20-00003.  This is a variance request

                22    for the installation of a fence within the

                23    required five foot minimal property line

                24    distance.  Subject property, 23 Eugenia, TMS

                25    207-08-00-014 is located in the R-1 zoning
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                 1    district and is subject -- and is not subject to

                 2    the purview of the Architectural Review Board.

                 3                  The subject lot is approximately

                 4    34,000 square feet in size, and the property sits

                 5    adjacent to the Kiawah Island Community

                 6    Association beach access pathway.  Properties to

                 7    the east is also located in the R-1 zoning

                 8    district as well as properties across Eugenia

                 9    Avenue in the R-1 zoning district.

                10                  The ordinance requires a 25 foot

                11    front yard setback and a ten foot side yard

                12    setback and a 25 foot rear yard setback.

                13                  The allowed maximum lot coverage is

                14    33 percent, and the ordinance also requires that

                15    fences shall be limited to landscaped hedgerows

                16    of dense plant material or -- and/or wooden

                17    masonry or wrought iron material, all of which

                18    are required to be architecturally integrated

                19    within the development of the lot or parcel, and

                20    that fences shall not be permitted within five

                21    feet of the side or the rear property line.

                22                  The existing -- the subject

                23    property is now under construction and was issued

                24    a build permit on August 1, 2018.  Prior to the

                25    submittal of the variance application, planning
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                 1    staff did meet on site with the applicant to

                 2    identify potential placement for proposed fence

                 3    and alternatives to proposed fence.

                 4                  The applicant's proposed --

                 5    proposal today includes placing a wood wire fence

                 6    along the western property line.  That is

                 7    adjacent to the beach access wood work maintained

                 8    by the Community Association.  That proposed

                 9    fence is approximately five feet in height.

                10                  And the Community Association also

                11    approved the temporary fence during the

                12    construction of the single-family home.  As you

                13    can see, there are a few images of the site now

                14    under construction.  The beach access path is

                15    right adjacent to the subject property.

                16                  I will go to the staff review

                17    findings, and beginning with criteria A, there

                18    are -- there may be extraordinary and exceptional

                19    conditions pertaining to the property, and that's

                20    due to the required minimum five foot fence

                21    distance, the existing grade on site and the

                22    adjacent beach access pathway.

                23                  The applicant's letter of intent

                24    states that there is a heavily used public beach

                25    access that runs parallel to the property line at
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                 1    23 Eugenia and sections of the path are at a

                 2    significantly higher elevation than those of the

                 3    lot at 23 Eugenia.

                 4                  All retaining walls have been

                 5    designed to address these significant changes of

                 6    the grade that are not common to most other

                 7    public/private property relationships.

                 8                  Criteria B, these conditions may be

                 9    unique to the subject property, and they may not

                10    generally apply to other properties in the

                11    vicinity.  It is located within the R-1 zoning

                12    district and does sit adjacent to the community

                13    association's beach access path and boardwalk.

                14    This is boardwalk 10.

                15                  The existing home at 21 Eugenia

                16    Avenue located on the opposite side of that beach

                17    access path does not contain a fence.

                18                  All other beach access paths along

                19    Eugenia Avenue with the exception of the pathway

                20    adjacent to the community association's

                21    sandcastle did not contain fences along the

                22    property line.  The fence located at the

                23    sandcastle is adjacent to the parking lot in

                24    which Eugenia Avenue terminates.

                25                  Per the applicant's letter of
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                 1    intent, both the path comes close to some

                 2    sections -- to some sections of the house and

                 3    property line, and there are concerns about

                 4    trespassing, given the proximity of the path to

                 5    the property that may occur without a barrier to

                 6    prevent this.

                 7                  More importantly, there is

                 8    significant concern about potential trespassers

                 9    encroaching into the property and the accidental

                10    falling over these tall walls, potentially a

                11    seven-foot wall in some locations.  A fence would

                12    prevent this from happening.

                13                  Criteria C, the application of

                14    ordinance to 23 Eugenia would prohibit this

                15    proposed fence installation as the proposed fence

                16    is isolated and would sit within the required

                17    five foot minimum property line distance;

                18    however, it does not unreasonably restrict the

                19    utilization of the property.

                20                  Criteria D, the authorization of

                21    this variance may be of substantial detriment to

                22    the adjacent properties for the public good, and

                23    the proposed fence is isolated along the property

                24    line and is not architecturally integrated with

                25    the development of the lot in parcel.  The
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                 1    landscape plan proposed vegetations serving as

                 2    buffers to be planted between the fence and the

                 3    home under construction, proposed on both sides

                 4    of the fence to assist with screening the fence

                 5    and the home from the beach access pathway.

                 6                  Per the applicant's letter of

                 7    intent, "both the fences would be a five-foot

                 8    tall living fence, planted heavily and hiding the

                 9    fence from view.  Locating the fence along the

                10    property line allows room for significant

                11    planting and would be in keeping with Kiawah's

                12    philosophy to plant buffers in such a way that

                13    appear natural."

                14                  Criteria E, the granting of this

                15    variance would not -- would not allow the

                16    establishment of a use not otherwise permitted in

                17    this zoning district or extend the -- physically

                18    a nonconforming use of the land or a change in

                19    zoning district boundaries.

                20                  Criteria F, the BZA may not

                21    consider profitability when considering this

                22    variance request.

                23                  Criteria G, the need for the

                24    variance may be the result of the applicant's own

                25    actions since the existing residence is permitted
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                 1    without the proposed fence, and the proposed

                 2    fence could be modified to be integrated with

                 3    design outside of the required five-foot minimum

                 4    property line distance.

                 5             The applicant's letter of intent

                 6    contents, "the proximity of the path to the

                 7    property line and location of the retaining wall

                 8    is needed to manage the grade dictate that the --

                 9    dictate that the proposed fence needs to be

                10    located on or just inside the property line in

                11    order to effectively address this potential

                12    safety issue."

                13                  Criteria H, granting of this

                14    variance may be contrary to the public or

                15    neighborhood interests, may adversely affect

                16    other property in the vicinity or interfere with

                17    the harmony, spirit, and intent and purposes of

                18    these regulations.

                19                  The subject property is not under

                20    the purview of the Kiawah Island Architectural

                21    Review Board; however, proposed plans differ from

                22    existing patterns of the adjacent boardwalk and

                23    beach access pathways.  Per the applicant's

                24    letter of intent, approval of this request will

                25    not affect adjacent properties adversely.
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                 1                  The final criteria I, granting of

                 2    the variance may not substantially conflict with

                 3    the comprehensive plan.  The Town of Kiawah

                 4    Island's comprehensive plan and housing element

                 5    VIII, goals one, implementation strategy states,

                 6    "provide mechanisms to permit flexibility and

                 7    innovation in residential project designs to

                 8    promote land sufficiency and environmental

                 9    protection."

                10                  The granting of the variance may

                11    substantially conflict with the purposes of the

                12    ordinance as a proposed fence may impact the

                13    visual impact on the existing neighborhood;

                14    however, the authorization of the variance would

                15    only grant site specific permission to place the

                16    fence within the five foot minimum property line

                17    distance.

                18                  And so, what I want to do is go

                19    back to just show you exactly where the location

                20    of the fence is, which is here in blue proposed

                21    along the property line.  They also show the

                22    proposed height of that particular fence.  Here's

                23    the beach access path that the Kiawah Island

                24    Community Association maintains, and these are

                25    retaining walls here adjacent to the proposed
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                 1    fence.

                 2             And the architect, the landscape

                 3    architect will most likely be more in depth to

                 4    discuss the design of the site.

                 5                  MS. KULICK:  John, before you leave

                 6    that slide, how far from the KICA beach access is

                 7    21 Eugenia?  The house next door which doesn't

                 8    have any sort of fence.

                 9                  MR. TAYLOR:  That's a good

                10    question.  I don't know if I have a slide that

                11    shows it.  That's their property line.  I would

                12    need to probably do a little homework to get the

                13    exact distance of where that house may sit.

                14                  MR. PARKER:  If you go to this --

                15    this aerial photo here that the drone took, you

                16    can probably get a sense of how far that is.

                17                  MR. TAYLOR:  I don't want to put a

                18    number to it, but yeah, I think, Mr. Parker, I

                19    kind of agree.  There is the subject property to

                20    the KICA.

                21                  MS. KULICK:  Thanks, Scott.

                22                  MR. CASSIDY:  Could you go back to

                23    that schematic you were looking at before?  That

                24    serpentine retaining wall that's there, that

                25    encroaches into the ten foot setback at different
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                 1    points.  Was that approved by the BZA at some

                 2    point prior to me getting here?

                 3                  MR. TAYLOR:  No.  So that would

                 4    have been approved at the staff level since this

                 5    wall -- and it doesn't exceed the three feet in

                 6    height minimum requirement, so those low walls

                 7    can exceed encroachments in the setback.

                 8                  MR. CASSIDY:  Okay.

                 9                  MR. HACKER:  It looks like the

                10    house is built right on the ten foot.

                11                  MR. CASSIDY:  Yes, it is.

                12                  MR. HACKER:  So that there's only

                13    ten feet between their wall of the house and the

                14    property line, and then there is another five

                15    feet approximately to the KICA walk, so they're

                16    really pushing the envelope with the -- using up

                17    every bit of the property with.

                18                  MR. CASSIDY:  The same thing on the

                19    other side.

                20                  MR. PARKER:  I have a question,

                21    too, because when I went there to look at the

                22    property, I couldn't get a good sense of where

                23    the boardwalk is and the distance from the

                24    boardwalk to the fence is going to be.  You know,

                25    what is the distance from here to there.
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                 1                  MS. KULICK:  That was very

                 2    impressive, Scott.

                 3                  MR. CASSIDY:  I'd like to ask a

                 4    related question, too.  There's a line of stakes

                 5    with orange on top of them.  That looks like the

                 6    line of a fence.

                 7                  MR. HACKER:  So that is the line of

                 8    the property because that's why -- there was

                 9    someone on-site when I was there, and I said,

                10    what are all these orange tip stakes, and he

                11    said, that's the property line.

                12                  MR. CASSIDY:  Yeah.

                13                  MR. HACKER:  Which is the

                14    approximate --

                15                  MR. TAYLOR:  I'm sorry, on my

                16    presentation, I'm finding pictures.  You're

                17    referencing these stakes?

                18                  MR. CASSIDY:  Yeah.

                19                  MR. TAYLOR:  These would be where

                20    the proposed fence would be located.

                21                  MR. HACKER:  And the existing fence

                22    that's there is on KICA property.  It's not on

                23    the property of the --

                24                  MR. CASSIDY:  Uh-huh, yes, the

                25    chain-link fence.
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                 1                  MR. HACKER:  Yeah, the chain-link

                 2    fence.

                 3                  MR. TAYLOR:  Are there any more

                 4    questions?  I wanted to kind of stop.  I've got a

                 5    couple more notes to review on this

                 6    particular matter.

                 7             So if the board makes a decision today

                 8    and in the event that you did consider approving

                 9    this particular application, there are several

                10    conditions that staff would ask for your

                11    consideration, which would -- the first would be,

                12    prior to the installation of the proposed fence,

                13    the landscape plan that was approved should be

                14    submitted to staff for review.

                15             And then, number two, prior to the

                16    installation of proposed fence, the applicant

                17    should consult with KICA to ensure that residents

                18    and guests are not impacted during the

                19    construction of that fence.

                20             Three, submitted as-built survey should

                21    be submitted to the planning department

                22    subsequent to the construction of the home and

                23    fence.  And then finally, in the event that the

                24    proposed trees and shrubs of the landscape plan

                25    that are placed along that fence fail within one
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                 1    year of installation, the applicant shall replace

                 2    that vegetation.

                 3                  Additionally, within your

                 4    materials, you received written public comments.

                 5    The first letter there is from the Community

                 6    Association.  The second one is from the

                 7    Architectural Review Board.  You also receive one

                 8    from the property owners at 21 Eugenia Avenue.

                 9                  And during our first case

                10    presentation, Petra also gave you a second letter

                11    that was submitted by the Community Association

                12    on another case, so I don't want you to confuse

                13    that that was related to this particular case,

                14    but that was for the final case.  And that's all

                15    I have --

                16                  MR. HACKER:  Any other questions

                17    for him?

                18                  MR. LEWIS:  I've got a couple

                19    questions.  Was the potential seven-foot drop,

                20    was that in place before the construction, or did

                21    the construction create that seven-foot drop, the

                22    potential seven-foot drop?

                23                  MR. TAYLOR:  That would have been

                24    adjusted in the site grade for the -- for the

                25    lot.
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                 1                  MR. LEWIS:  Okay.  Then goes to the

                 2    west, where the house was already there.  Is

                 3    there also a drop on that side --

                 4                  MR. TAYLOR:  There's a single --

                 5                  MR. LEWIS:  -- of the pathway?

                 6                  MR. TAYLOR:  There is a huge dune

                 7    in the area.  I don't know if I have a picture.

                 8                  MR. LEWIS:  Okay.  So the house

                 9    that's already there, is there a drop on the

                10    west?

                11                  MR. TAYLOR:  THE WITNESS:  Here?

                12                  MR. LEWIS:  Yeah.  From the -- the

                13    walkway, the boardwalk.

                14                  MR. TAYLOR:  This is -- I'm going

                15    to try to show you.  If you were to walk this

                16    path, it climbs up pretty steep here, and then

                17    falls back down.  And that's sort of at that --

                18    the crest of that dune there, and then it drops

                19    back off towards this mark here on the right side

                20    of that picture.  I don't know if that answers

                21    your question.

                22                  MR. CASSIDY:  To your question, I

                23    mean, I had the same impression when I looked at

                24    it.  It appears that they excavated to --

                25                  MR. LEWIS:  Dugout?
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                 1                  MR. CASSIDY:  Yeah, dugout to put

                 2    their -- the first level of the house sort of

                 3    below what the existing grade was before they got

                 4    it.

                 5                  MR. TAYLOR:  Mr. Lewis, I would

                 6    think the architect could speak to some of this

                 7    site, these items.

                 8                  MR. LEWIS:  Okay.  Thanks.

                 9                  MS. KULICK:  I guess I have one

                10    more question that you may or may not be able to

                11    answer, John, and that is the people at 21

                12    Eugenia on the other side of the people walkway

                13    do not have a fence there.  Have there been, to

                14    your knowledge, any safety issues of the type

                15    that the applicant here is discussing raised by

                16    those people at 21 Eugenia?

                17                  MR. TAYLOR:  It has not been

                18    brought to my attention since it is a Community

                19    Association maintained boardwalk, they may have

                20    more knowledge on that particular question, but

                21    from a zoning or a staff level here with the

                22    town, no.

                23                  MS. KULICK:  Thank you.

                24                  MR. HACKER:  If there are no other

                25    questions for John, we can hear from the
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                 1    applicant.

                 2                  MS. CLINE:  This is also my first

                 3    time.  Good afternoon.

                 4                  MR. HACKER:  And your name and

                 5    address?

                 6                  MS. CLINE:  Sure.  Cindy Cline.  I

                 7    am a landscape architect.  My personal address?

                 8                  MR. PARKER:  No, business.

                 9                  MS. CLINE:  Oh, so Wertimer & Cline

                10    Landscape Architects.

                11                  MR. HACKER:  Can you speak more

                12    into the microphone?

                13                  MS. CLINE:  Like that?  I'm really

                14    bad at this, sorry.  Was that all the information

                15    you need from me?  I mean, as far as my name and

                16    all that.

                17                  MR. HACKER:  Have you gotten her

                18    name and address?

                19                  COURT REPORTER:  I didn't get the

                20    address.

                21                  MS. CLINE:  171 Church Street,

                22    Charleston 29401.

                23                  MR. HACKER:  Thank you.

                24                  MS. CLINE:  I think that John did

                25    an excellent job at walking through our submittal
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                 1    and why we're here today.  I would just, in sum,

                 2    reiterate that it was really -- the site

                 3    conditions largely drove the design of the house

                 4    along the property line that we are talking about

                 5    today.

                 6                  The grade before construction, the

                 7    existing condition was truly that the grade along

                 8    the beach walk and between the two properties

                 9    rose and fall, much as you can see in the images

                10    of the existing beach walk.  And at one of the

                11    pinch points in our buildable area, that dune

                12    rises to approximately 17 feet roughly.

                13                  And the elevation at the courtyard

                14    and sort of the -- the ground floor level, where

                15    the house really wanted to be taking the rest of

                16    the site into consideration, created that

                17    difference between that high point of 17 and what

                18    ended up being closer to 11 at the slab of the

                19    house.

                20                  And so it really was site

                21    conditions that led us to propose and create

                22    these retaining walls around the house that

                23    created that -- that plus or minus seven-foot

                24    drop that we're talking about, in order to keep

                25    the grade -- the existing grade back and to build
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                 1    the home.

                 2                  So that's also kind of why we are

                 3    here today.  Yes, the homeowner requested the

                 4    fence because of the proximity of the path to the

                 5    home site.  And if you're there, you saw how

                 6    close the two are.  Trespassing is a concern for

                 7    them, but equally so, if not more importantly,

                 8    it's really a safety concern.

                 9                  And I guess, I would say that the

                10    way I started to think about it and visualize it

                11    is, if you're there on site, and you sort of look

                12    at the relationship of the path to the home site,

                13    if you visualize that construction fence no

                14    longer there, you get a really good idea of what

                15    that condition would be and what that change of

                16    grade would be between the path and our lot.

                17                  The intention would be for this

                18    fence to be a living fence.  We want for it to

                19    disappear as much as possible, so it would be

                20    heavily planted and screened.

                21                  Again, per our submittal, we want

                22    for that -- we want to be in keeping with

                23    Kiawah's philosophy of creating a natural looking

                24    buffer between properties, so that there is no

                25    delineating really between the two properties and
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                 1    that the fence would be hidden and screened

                 2    within that heavily vegetated buffer.

                 3             I'm here to answer questions.

                 4                  MR. HACKER:  Did KICA, when you met

                 5    them prior to this, did they state the same

                 6    concerns about worrying about needing a fence

                 7    because it might have something fall off of?

                 8    Because there's five feet of their property

                 9    before we get to your property.

                10                  MS. CLINE:  Correct, yes.  Him and

                11    I spoke a couple of times way back last year,

                12    last fall.  I didn't ever get the opportunity to

                13    meet with him at the same time on the property.

                14    That -- in our discussion that was not one of the

                15    things that came up.

                16                  MR. HANAN:  Can you grade the

                17    property such that you could mitigate the safety

                18    issues associated with it instead of having to do

                19    a wall like this?

                20                  MS. CLINE:  So we are kind of -- if

                21    you look at the -- at the site plan and the areas

                22    where the walls are shown closest to the fence on

                23    the property line, what we're doing there is, we

                24    are really trying to maintain the existing grade

                25    of the beach path and the -- the grade adjacent
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                 1    to the beach path up into that wall.  So the

                 2    retaining walls are already serving as best we

                 3    can to maintain those existing conditions outside

                 4    of our property line.

                 5                  MS. KULICK:  Cindy, if I understood

                 6    you correctly when you were speaking, and with

                 7    what I've read in the materials, the idea of so

                 8    much heavy planting along there, and then you

                 9    would propose putting the fence kind of through

                10    the shrubbery.

                11                  So my question is, if there is

                12    going to be that much shrubbery planted there,

                13    why does there need to be a fence?  Won't that

                14    provide protection both for the homeowner and

                15    address the safety issues that the homeowner has

                16    raised?

                17                  MS. CLINE:  That is a really good

                18    point and that has been a point of discussion

                19    many times in discussions with the homeowner, and

                20    I really think that there -- and, again, it's

                21    about trespassing, but it really is more about

                22    the safety issue.

                23                  I just think they are truly worried

                24    and they would like -- that's why we are here

                25    requesting more of a physical barrier that would
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                 1    be a sure stopgap measure with something.

                 2                  MR. HACKER:  Seeing that there's

                 3    space there for the fence at the five foot level,

                 4    that should certainly solve the same thing, or

                 5    you wouldn't be here at all.  So why do you want

                 6    to make it on the edge where KICA's property is?

                 7    It sounds like you're only doing that so you can

                 8    put all the shrubbery on your side.

                 9                  MS. CLINE:  Well, if you look at

                10    the site plan, again, you'll see that there are

                11    places along the property line where the public

                12    access path comes quite close to the property

                13    line, and it also comes quite close to, on the

                14    other side, where we proposed to build the

                15    retaining wall in order to achieve the grade that

                16    was necessary.

                17                  So if you split the difference, the

                18    property line actually would serve both

                19    properties best by being able to weed the

                20    vegetation on both sides of it, if that makes

                21    sense.

                22                  MR. HACKER:  If you did that on

                23    both sides, would that be moving the fence back

                24    into your property?

                25                  MS. CLINE:  As proposed now, the
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                 1    fence is just inside of our property line, and as

                 2    proposed, would allow -- would better allow for

                 3    planting on both sides of that fence.

                 4                  MR. HACKER:  Any other questions?

                 5    Thank you very much.

                 6                  MS. CLINE:  Thank you.

                 7                  MR. HACKER:  Anyone else wishing to

                 8    speak on this?

                 9                  MS. SENST:  Hello.  I'm Sara Senst,

                10    ARB director, 253 Gardeners Circle in Kiawah

                11    Island, 29455.  The ARB is strongly opposed this

                12    fence.  It is counter to our guidelines designed

                13    with nature.

                14                  And I am familiar with Cindy's

                15    work.  She's a fantastic landscape architect, and

                16    I know that she would try to make it go away as

                17    much as possible, but the fact of the matter is

                18    it's simply too close to that KICA property line

                19    to -- or the boardwalk to appear natural, even

                20    though it's being proposed as a living fence with

                21    plantings.

                22                  We also feel like it's going to

                23    feel imposing to the very popular, you know, KICA

                24    boardwalk, so I just wanted to say that.

                25                  MR. HACKER:  Have you had any
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                 1    discussions with KICA about that, too?  Is that

                 2    something that the ARB has talked to them about

                 3    because it's -- it would be their concern also?

                 4                  MS. SENST:  Yes.  And I believe

                 5    that I have permission to speak on behalf of Ed

                 6    Monahan because I've been copied on some e-mails

                 7    of his, and he has talked -- spoken with me

                 8    directly about it, and they are vehemently

                 9    opposed to this wall.  They believe it's going to

                10    detract from the enjoyment of the popular

                11    boardwalk, and everyone that enjoys the

                12    boardwalk.

                13                  MR. HACKER:  Any other questions?

                14    Thank you.

                15             Anyone else wish to speak on this

                16    property?  If not, then we'll call to -- this

                17    discussion and we'll put it for a motion.

                18                  MS. KULICK:  I would like to make a

                19    motion that the BZA deny this application, and if

                20    it's seconded, I would like to speak to why.

                21                  MR. PARKER:  I will second it.  I'm

                22    not trying to fall over your chair, but I second

                23    this motion.

                24                  MR. HACKER:  It's been moved and

                25    seconded, we do not approve this variance, and
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                 1    it's open for discussion.

                 2                  MS. KULICK:  Aside from what's been

                 3    raised by KICA and the ARB, which I think are

                 4    important considerations for the BZA under any

                 5    circumstance, having walked the property, having

                 6    looked at it, I just -- it seems to me that there

                 7    is really no need for this, and that's why I'm

                 8    opposed to the application.

                 9                  MR. PARKER:  I will just go ahead

                10    and weigh in as well.  I don't believe -- I

                11    believe that the aesthetic concerns are not in --

                12    not in keeping with the comprehensive plan of the

                13    town.  I think that there are no other fences

                14    along any other boardwalk, and to the best of my

                15    knowledge, we've not had any other problems in

                16    terms of that.

                17                  And we are not the public safety

                18    commission, and you know, this property, if

                19    somebody -- if something happens, that's going to

                20    be off of KICA's boardwalk.  And so, for those

                21    reasons, I just don't see that there is any

                22    compelling reason to put this fence in.

                23                  MR. HACKER:  I tend to agree

                24    because they have the opportunity to protect

                25    their property by putting the fence within the
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                 1    five foot -- closer to five feet away from the

                 2    property line.  They can still not be worried

                 3    about trespassing with that fence.  The fence

                 4    does not have to be on the property line for that

                 5    protection.  If there is no other discussion, I

                 6    will call the question.  All those in favor of

                 7    not approving this variance, say aye.

                 8                  (All respond with aye.)

                 9                  MR. HACKER:  All those oppose say

                10    same.  Motion passes unanimously not to approve

                11    the variance to allow your fence to be created

                12    along the property line.

                13                   We have a third case today, John.

                14                  MR. TAYLOR:  You guys haven't had

                15    three in forever.  Our final case of today, BZA

                16    case number 20-000002.  This is a variance

                17    request to increase the maximum allowable lot

                18    coverage of 33 percent by approximately .71

                19    percent to 33.71 percent.

                20             This is for a proposed single-family

                21    residence.  The subject property is in the R-1

                22    zoning district, and this is subject property 43A

                23    Eugenia.  The ordinance requires that the maximum

                24    lot coverage for this particular lot be

                25    33 percent, and there is 25 foot front, a ten
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                 1    foot side setback, and the property rear setback

                 2    is determined by the adjacent lots on the site

                 3    line.

                 4                  As stated, the particular property

                 5    is zoned R-1.  You can see that the adjacent

                 6    properties are also zoned R-1, both adjacent to

                 7    east and west and across Eugenia to the north.

                 8    Here are a few areas of the existing subject

                 9    property.

                10                  Any adjacent homes to the subject

                11    property, the existing property to the rear of

                12    the subject house and across Eugenia Avenue.

                13    Here is the proposed structure of the new home.

                14                  The applicant's proposed plan is to

                15    demolish the existing house to construct a new

                16    home, and those proposed plans exceed the maximum

                17    allowable lot coverage by approximately

                18    .71 percent, roughly 111 square feet.  The

                19    applicants have stated, "Ralph and Elizabeth Teal

                20    have a signed contract to purchase a home on 43A

                21    Eugenia from the existing owners with contingency

                22    for approval of the plans.

                23                  This house is within the

                24    jurisdiction of the Kiawah ARB, and we have

                25    gained schematic approval with the ARB board,
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                 1    granting two variances, a lot coverage variance

                 2    and a height variance.  We are asking for .71 lot

                 3    coverage variance from the Town of Kiawah Board

                 4    of Zoning.

                 5                  And this existing home is situated

                 6    closer to the street than the neighboring homes

                 7    with great live oaks on the street side.  A good

                 8    portion of the guest parking is located outside

                 9    of the property line, and our design is to push

                10    back from the road to save the oak trees and

                11    better align the homes on both sides.  This is

                12    the reason for this variance request."

                13                  The subject existing residence was

                14    constructed in 1975.  They did submit to the

                15    Architectural Review Board as stated for

                16    conceptual review, and the Architectural Review

                17    Board approved that particular request stating,

                18    "the ARB approves of the proposed lot coverage

                19    given the preservation that the tree grows at the

                20    front of the property and the relocation of the

                21    existing guest parking area, so that it is fully

                22    within the property.

                23                  The ARB approves the proposed rear

                24    setback location and setback variance for the

                25    pool and deck location given the neighborhood
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                 1    contacts for outdoor living space.  The board

                 2    approves the long panel to be located a minimum

                 3    of 30 feet from the rear property line and the

                 4    ARB approves the proposed maximum height variance

                 5    given the topography of the site and neighborhood

                 6    context."

                 7                  Regarding the particular criteria

                 8    of staff's review, if you look at criteria A,

                 9    there may be extraordinary and exceptional

                10    conditions pertaining to the property, and this

                11    is due to the existing trees on the lot, and the

                12    sighting of existing adjacent home.

                13                  The subject property contains

                14    several large oak trees at the front of the lot.

                15    The applicant has shared within their letter of

                16    intent, this is a tear down on Eugenia that we'd

                17    work with the ARB to get conceptual approval.

                18             It is -- it has exceptional conditions

                19    on the property with the oak trees in the front

                20    of the lot and half of the existing guest parking

                21    is located in the right-of-way.  The existing

                22    houses on both sides of the lot are much closer

                23    to the rear setback, and we are trying to align

                24    the houses better.

                25                  Criteria B, the conditions may be
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                 1    unique to the subject property and may not

                 2    generally apply to other properties in the

                 3    vicinity.

                 4             The property is located in the R-1

                 5    zoning district, and the adjacent to the

                 6    properties to the east and west and to the north

                 7    across Eugenia are also located within the R-1

                 8    zoning district.  Existing structures in the

                 9    vicinity may or may not have similar

                10    encroachments based on the current setbacks, and

                11    the existing single-family home on the subject

                12    property was constructed in 1975 according to

                13    county's records.

                14                  The adjacent homes were constructed

                15    in 2017 and 2003, respectively, 45 Eugenia and

                16    43B Eugenia.  And the applicant's letter of

                17    intent states that these conditions do not

                18    generally apply to other properties in the

                19    vicinity.

                20                  Criteria C, the application of this

                21    ordinance would prohibit the proposed

                22    single-family construction as the proposed

                23    structure exceeds the maximum allowable lot

                24    coverage; however, it does not unreasonably

                25    restrict the utilization of the property, and the
�
                                                                      50



                 1    applicant has also stated that these conditions

                 2    would unreasonably restrict the utilization of

                 3    the property.

                 4                  Criteria D, the authorization of

                 5    the variance may not be of substantial detriment

                 6    to the adjacent properties or the public good,

                 7    and these proposed plans relocate the parking of

                 8    the home fully within the property.

                 9                  For the applicant's letter of

                10    intent, this authorization will actually help the

                11    character of the neighboring homes by allowing us

                12    to better align the ocean side of the homes on

                13    both sides and allow us to push a little further

                14    from the street while keeping the oak trees in

                15    front.

                16                  Criteria E, granting of the

                17    variance would not allow the establishment of a

                18    use not otherwise permitted in this zoning

                19    district, to extend physically a nonconforming

                20    use of land or change the zoning district

                21    boundaries.

                22                  Per the applicant's letter of

                23    intent, "this variance would not establish the

                24    use not permitted in the zoning district nor

                25    extend physically a nonconforming use, and it
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                 1    will not change the zoning district boundaries."

                 2                  Criteria F, the BZA may not

                 3    consider probability when considering this

                 4    request.  In the applicant's letter of intent,

                 5    "this variance would be for the betterment of the

                 6    property in the neighborhood, not for profit."

                 7                  Criteria G, the need for this

                 8    variance may be the applicant's own actions since

                 9    the proposed resident is yet to be permitted and

                10    constructed.  Plans could be revised to meet the

                11    required maximum allowable lot coverage for 32

                12    percent for the subject property; however, per

                13    the applicant's letter of intent, the variance

                14    request is not the result of the applicant's

                15    actions.

                16                  Criteria H, granting of variance

                17    may not be contrary to the public or neighborhood

                18    interest may not adversely affect the other

                19    properties in the vicinity, nor interfere with

                20    the harmony, spirit, intent, and purposes of

                21    these regulations.

                22                  December of 2019 on the 19th, the

                23    Architectural Review Board did approve the

                24    conceptual review, and they stated, "the

                25    Architectural Review approves of the proposed lot
�
                                                                      52



                 1    coverage given the preservation that the tree

                 2    grows at the front of the property and relocation

                 3    of existing guest parking area, so that it's

                 4    fully within the property.

                 5                  Architectural Review Board approves

                 6    the proposed rear setback location and setback

                 7    variance for the pool and deck, given the

                 8    location -- I'm sorry.  Architectural Review

                 9    Board approves the proposed rear deck -- rear

                10    setback location and setback variance for the

                11    pool and deck location given the neighborhood

                12    context for the outdoor living space.

                13                  And the border approves the lawn

                14    panels to be located a minimum of 30 feet from

                15    the rear property line.  The ARB approves that a

                16    proposed maximum height variance given the

                17    topography of the site and the neighborhood

                18    context.

                19                  And per the applicant's letter of

                20    intent, this would not be contrary to the public

                21    or neighborhood interest, nor adversely affect

                22    other property in the vicinity, nor interfere

                23    with the harmony, spirit, intent, and purposes of

                24    these regulations.

                25                  And the final criteria I, granting
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                 1    of the variance may not substantially conflict

                 2    with comprehensive planning or the purposes of

                 3    the ordinance.  The proposed plans modified guest

                 4    parking to be retained fully within the property

                 5    boundaries, and per the applicant's letter of

                 6    intent, the connecting of the variance does not

                 7    conflict with the comprehensive plan of purposes

                 8    of the ordinance.

                 9                  There is one condition outlined

                10    that staff is recommending if you do consider

                11    approval of this particular request, and that's

                12    subsequent to the construction of the

                13    single-family home, the applicant should submit

                14    an as-built survey to the planning department.

                15                  One other letter was just received

                16    today at the last hour, and so that was the

                17    letter that Petra has placed before you regarding

                18    the application and concerns of this particular

                19    property owner.

                20                  MR. HACKER:  Any questions for John

                21    about the staff report?

                22                  MR. PARKER:  I just have a general

                23    question.  I'm confused now about Eugenia because

                24    in years past, things that -- homes on Eugenia

                25    have been stated to be not under the purview of
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                 1    the Architectural Kiawah ARB.  Why is this one?

                 2                  MS. KULICK:  It depends on where on

                 3    Eugenia --

                 4                  MR. PARKER:  Okay.

                 5                  MS. KULICK:  -- the home is.

                 6                  MR. PARKER:  Okay.

                 7                  MS. KULICK:  Parts of Eugenia are

                 8    parts of it, yeah.

                 9                  MR. TAYLOR:  Yeah, there is.

                10                  MR. PARKER:  Okay.  And where is --

                11    just for my opinion, where is that boundary?

                12                  MR. TAYLOR:  The boundary of?

                13                  MR. PARKER:  When is the ARB --

                14                  MR. TAYLOR:  There is a list of

                15    categories that are sent through the Association,

                16    the ARB, and they identify each property on

                17    Eugenia that will say, hey, this particular lot

                18    is subject to the ARB or not, so staff has a copy

                19    of that.

                20                  MR. PARKER:  Okay.  But it's not

                21    like a physical, you know, here's a crosswalk

                22    and --

                23                  MR. TAYLOR:  No.

                24                  MR. PARKER:  Okay.

                25                  MR. HACKER:  If there are no other
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                 1    questions for John, I will hear from the

                 2    applicant.

                 3                  MR. WINDHAM:  I am Wayne Windham.

                 4    I'm the architect, and my office is 1779 Main

                 5    Road.  I designed this home for Ralph and

                 6    Elizabeth Teal, and I worked with the ARB to try

                 7    to save the oak trees in the front while trying

                 8    to work with the dune in the back.

                 9                  The dune rises up to 19 feet and

                10    drops off to 11 feet, and if you have seen the

                11    site plan before, the driveway paving is in the

                12    right-of-way.  And what we've done is we've taken

                13    and pushed the house back so that we can save all

                14    the oak trees and give them some room to

                15    flourish.

                16                  We've got longer distances from the

                17    driveway, and I think we've done a pretty good

                18    job of trying to be cognizant of the tree

                19    structure.  We are not -- we're close to

                20    paralleling the property lines, but I think

                21    there's like 10 foot on one side and 11 foot on

                22    the other side.

                23                  MR. HACKER:  Mr. Windham, the fact

                24    that you're really talking about 111 square feet,

                25    it seems like that would be something that could
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                 1    be found in a smaller pool deck, pervious

                 2    driveways and something and you wouldn't even be

                 3    here.

                 4                  MR. WINDHAM:  Well, the entire

                 5    driveway is pervious, so it is kept up to do

                 6    that.

                 7                  MS. KULICK:  But 111 square feet is

                 8    not very much.

                 9                  MR. WINDHAM:  No, it's not.

                10                  MR. HACKER:  But I'm looking and

                11    I'm thinking that it almost could save, you know,

                12    the --

                13                  MR. WINDHAM:  So, I mean, what we

                14    have to do is, they can move the house towards

                15    the road.  I mean, that's not what we want to do

                16    because of the trees, and also, both houses on

                17    the right and left are forward from our house.

                18    It's a long way --

                19                  MS. KULICK:  If you were to move

                20    the house closer to the road, how many of those

                21    trees that you took into consideration would be

                22    affected?

                23                  MR. WINDHAM:  Short-term, probably

                24    one.  But long-term, I worry about the

                25    sustainability of those trees because we're going
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                 1    to get into digging the root system out as

                 2    opposed to just paving over the top of it.

                 3                  MR. HACKER:  I'm still not

                 4    understanding what the trees have to do with this

                 5    request.  I mean, theoretically, you could put

                 6    the house in the same position that you're

                 7    recommending here and make it two percent

                 8    smaller, which is the amount we're talking.

                 9                  MR. PARKER:  Make it less than one

                10    percent smaller.

                11                  MR. HACKER:  Yeah.  So I just don't

                12    understand.

                13                  MR. WINDHAM:  We worked -- this is

                14    a tight floor plan for five bedrooms and five and

                15    a half baths.

                16                  MS. KULICK:  They don't want to

                17    change the size of the house.

                18                  MR. HACKER:  Right.

                19                  MR. WINDHAM:  And the Teals wanted

                20    to get this approved.

                21                  MR. HANAN:  You can't change the

                22    footprint to comply with these requirements?

                23                  MR. WINDHAM:  Not 111 square feet.

                24    I'd would have to take it out somewhere else.

                25                  MS. KULICK:  This question may be
�
                                                                      58



                 1    better posed to the applicant themselves, but

                 2    under criteria C and criteria G, what the

                 3    applicant has stated appears to be exactly the

                 4    opposite of what staff response is, and I wonder

                 5    if you could address that because the applicant

                 6    says that the property would be unreasonably

                 7    restricted and staff says it would not.

                 8                  MR. WINDHAM:  No, unreasonable for

                 9    Ralph and Elizabeth Teal.  Yep, it would be.

                10                  MS. KULICK:  And just in the

                11    interest of full disclosure, Mr. Chair, when I

                12    was walking the property yesterday, Mr. and Mrs.

                13    Teal were there, and she wanted to know who I was

                14    and why I was there, which was a perfectly

                15    legitimate question.

                16             So I explained that I was on the BZA,

                17    and that I could not in any way discuss the

                18    application, and she -- they were fine with that,

                19    but I did see them at the property.

                20                  MR. HACKER:  Right.  Thank you for

                21    letting us know that.

                22                  MR. PARKER:  I have a question.

                23    Now, when I walked the property, right up against

                24    the dunes, there is a set of stakes that say pool

                25    on it.  Is that where you're proposing to take
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                 1    the pool out to?  Because your plans here show it

                 2    going pretty far out there, and then there's a

                 3    thing that says -- at the dunes, it says, "grind

                 4    down gradually."

                 5                  MR. WINDHAM:  See the square in the

                 6    back?  That's the existing deck on the top --

                 7                  MR. PARKER:  Yes.

                 8                  MR. WINDHAM:  -- of the dunes.  And

                 9    the pool is about five feet back from that.

                10                  MR. PARKER:  Okay.  So that's --

                11    that's the best way I understood what you were

                12    looking to do, because, I mean, this is -- I

                13    mean, there are less than two feet of dunes right

                14    here.

                15                  MR. WINDHAM:  Yeah.

                16                  MR. HACKER:  In your -- on that

                17    drive, you show that it says that there are

                18    primary drives and walks, 1555 square feet, it

                19    looks like what you're -- or percent or

                20    something.

                21                  MR. WINDHAM:  Uh-huh.

                22                  MR. HACKER:  And you just said that

                23    that -- the driveway was pervious, so wouldn't

                24    that make that number smaller?

                25                  MR. TAYLOR:  I think that the way
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                 1    that driveway is -- interpreting the ordinance is

                 2    that, whether it is impervious or pervious, it

                 3    would count towards that lot coverage number

                 4    based on the definition.

                 5                  So we would include everything,

                 6    including the right-of-way of the property line

                 7    to the garage, and that would include the guest

                 8    parking.  So all that area, that is -- that is

                 9    pervious.  It's technically counted in that.

                10                  MR. HACKER:  But it still is

                11    counting?

                12                  MR. TAYLOR:  It's still counted.

                13                  MR. LEWIS:  So if that's true, you

                14    could change the driveway and get your .71

                15    reduction rather changing the house.

                16                  MR. HACKER:  But that's like the

                17    same.  But they're saying they have to count the

                18    driveway whether it is pervious or impervious.

                19                  MR. WINDHAM:  And we have the

                20    driveway as full whether we do it pervious or

                21    impervious.

                22                  MR. LEWIS:  Right.  My point is,

                23    you can change the driveway and not change the

                24    house.

                25                  MS. KULICK:  Right, uh-huh.
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                 1                  MR. LEWIS:  You get your 111 -- you

                 2    get it back with the code.

                 3                  MR. WINDHAM:  I don't understand

                 4    that.

                 5                  MR. HACKER:  Make the parking space

                 6    smaller by --

                 7                  MR. WINDHAM:  Oh, all right.  All

                 8    right.

                 9                  MS. KULICK:  Yeah.

                10                  MR. TAYLOR:  I also want to just

                11    caution the BZA not to start to design.

                12                  MR. LEWIS:  Yeah.

                13                  MR. HACKER:  Any other questions?

                14    Thank you.  Any other people that would like to

                15    speak?

                16                  MS. PETERSON:  Denise Peterson, 45

                17    Eugenia, adjacent to 43.

                18                  MR. HACKER:  Uh-huh.

                19                  MS. PETERSON:  My first concern was

                20    -- and I can see by the drawings that it is not

                21    encroaching on my setback; is that true?  Okay.

                22                  And then my second concern is, I

                23    don't see where off the pool deck for that area,

                24    where there would be a boardwalk leading down to

                25    the beach because at present, there is no
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                 1    boardwalk attached to the house, and the dunes

                 2    have been trailed over.

                 3                  So I was just concerned as to what

                 4    is happening on the other side of the pool to

                 5    reach the beach.  Is that not a concern?

                 6                  MR. HACKER:  That's something that

                 7    we would be able to answer, and that is something

                 8    that you would have to address to the owner.  But

                 9    we are not deciding about anything about a

                10    walkway to the beach.

                11                  MS. PETERSON:  Oh, okay.  I'm

                12    sorry.  Thank you.  That would be all my concern

                13    then.

                14                  MR. HACKER:  Yes?

                15                  MS. SENST:  Sarah Senst, Kiawah

                16    ARB.  I just wanted to -- to clarify your

                17    question about the driveway layout.  So according

                18    to the ARB guidelines, they are -- and, Wayne,

                19    you can correct me if I'm wrong -- we have

                20    certain parameters in terms of driveway width and

                21    guest parking spaces that we require.

                22                  And I believe that everything has

                23    been adjusted in the driveway so that all of

                24    those parameters are met but not exceeded; is

                25    that true?
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                 1                  MS. KULICK:  Yeah.

                 2                  MR. HACKER:  I see.  So they really

                 3    cannot make it smaller.  They've already

                 4    configured the driveway and the parking space to

                 5    allow for the minimum that they have to have.

                 6                  MS. SENST:  Correct.

                 7                  MR. HACKER:  Thank you.  Anybody

                 8    else would like to speak?  Yes.

                 9                  MR. KOENIG:  I'm Scott Koenig with

                10    Koenig Homes, and just maybe two clarifications

                11    that might help some of the questions.  One was

                12    the 111 square feet and how small that sounds to

                13    get it out.  And just being privy to the

                14    iterative process, they did some things, just so

                15    everyone sees, like the grass around the pool

                16    deck instead of a lot more solid pavers.

                17                  There's not really a lot of

                18    exterior porches and decks, and when you take a

                19    step back and say, okay, this is this size home

                20    generally or smaller that you see in the

                21    neighborhood, it's just -- it struck it when we

                22    got to that.  We are so close; can we get there.

                23                  We did start to look at the

                24    driveway, and one point of clarification, though.

                25    You can get the whole square footage out of the
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                 1    driveway, but that's where the trees come in

                 2    because if you pull the house closer to the road,

                 3    by, let's say -- if the driveway is 10 feet wide,

                 4    if you bring it 11 feet closer to the street,

                 5    then you eliminate -- you eliminate the 111

                 6    square feet.

                 7                  MR. HACKER:  That's make the

                 8    driveway so you can --

                 9                  MR. KOENIG:  And that's what we

                10    said, we can do it, but now we're affecting the

                11    trees, so just to clarify, that's how that --

                12                  MS. KULICK:  And how many trees

                13    would be affected, Scott?

                14                  MR. KOENIG:  I believe it's the one

                15    tree that's right up against the -- there's a

                16    dash line there that represents where the house

                17    is currently.

                18                  MS. KULICK:  Uh-huh.

                19                  MR. KOENIG:  Oh, I can.  That backs

                20    it up.  So right here is a tree, and it's got

                21    sprawling limbs that come out this way.

                22                  MS. KULICK:  Uh-huh.

                23                  MR. KOENIG:  Here is the -- this is

                24    the outline of the current house.  It's right up

                25    against that tree.  So I'm not sure how much --
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                 1    how much distance this is.  We may not have pull

                 2    the house all the way back to get the 11 feet,

                 3    but if -- let's say that's 11 feet, then we're

                 4    right back to the house.

                 5                  MS. KULICK:  But it could be done?

                 6                  MR. KOENIG:  It could be, but then

                 7    we're talking about probably moving that tree

                 8    out, and that's really a long, sprawling limbed

                 9    oak, not a big oak that goes in all directions.

                10                  And then I think what Wayne's point

                11    is, then you start to affect the other -- I don't

                12    know where the other trees are on this.  I know

                13    this is the major one back here.  But you start

                14    to get into that when you start excavating around

                15    for the new construction.

                16                  MR. HACKER:  Thank you, Scott.

                17                  MR. KOENIG:  Sure.

                18                  MR. HACKER:  Would anyone else like

                19    to speak?  If not, we will close the information

                20    session and then I'll open for a motion.  Wendy?

                21                  MS. KULICK:  I would like to make a

                22    motion that the application be denied, and if

                23    it's seconded, then I will speak to my reasoning

                24    behind it.

                25                  MR. PARKER:  I'll second it.
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                 1                  MR. HANAN:  I second it.

                 2                  MR. HACKER:  Been moved and

                 3    seconded.

                 4                  MS. KULICK:  There are -- I have

                 5    great concerns about the two sections under the

                 6    various criteria that need to be -- need to be

                 7    met where the property owner is clearly

                 8    diametrically opposite to where the staff

                 9    recommendation comes down.

                10                  And I appreciate all of the efforts

                11    to save as many trees as possible, but I just --

                12    there are other options.  Nobody is saying that

                13    if this variance is denied, that these people

                14    cannot build their home.

                15                  MR. HACKER:  I'll take the other

                16    side on that.  The fact that they were trying to

                17    fit it in and trying to protect the trees, yes,

                18    they could move the house forward and not be here

                19    and then put the big trees in jeopardy.  So for

                20    111 square feet, they're saying, I'll take the --

                21    come here and say, we've done everything we can

                22    to fit this in except for 111 square feet.

                23                  MS. KULICK:  I hear you.  I was

                24    just giving you my reason.

                25                  MR. HACKER:  I'm giving mine.  Any
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                 1    other comments?

                 2                  MR. PARKER:  I think it's just,

                 3    since right now this -- this house is tear down

                 4    and that the architect can do anything that he is

                 5    -- is available to him right now, I think in

                 6    finding 111 square feet is not an unreasonable

                 7    part of our -- thing on our part.

                 8                  I would also like to point out

                 9    that, in the past, we had certainly denied other

                10    pieces of property on -- specifically Eugenia who

                11    wanted to exceed lot coverage.  You know, so we

                12    do have precedence on protecting that side of the

                13    island.

                14                  MR. HACKER:  I will remind the

                15    board that we don't use precedence as any place

                16    or is subject in its own criteria.

                17                  MR. PARKER:  I agree with that.

                18    I'm just saying that, you know, that has been a

                19    consideration in the past.

                20                  MR. HACKER:  Any other questions or

                21    comments?  Okay.  All of us in favor of rejecting

                22    this proposal say aye.

                23                  (Mr. Lewis, Mr. Parker,

                24    Mr. Cassidy, Ms. Kulick and Mr. Hanan said aye.)

                25                  MR. HACKER:  Opposed same, aye.
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                 1    Motion passes five to one with Mr. Hacker

                 2    opposing.

                 3             Is there any other business before us,

                 4    John?

                 5                  MR. TAYLOR:  Yes.  I wanted to

                 6    remind you that next Friday, the 28th -- I'm

                 7    sorry, this Friday, we are already here.

                 8                  MS. KULICK:  Don't confuse me.

                 9                  MR. TAYLOR:  We do have one

                10    continuing ed opportunity.  Many of you have

                11    responded to attend that.  That's going to be C

                12    level rise 101.  That's going to just talk about

                13    how government policy decisions are made around C

                14    level rise impacts.

                15                  I also want to say that we don't

                16    have any cases submitted for March, and so that

                17    -- that was the opportunity for us to have that

                18    workshop that we had discussed at the end of last

                19    year or mid of last year, rather.  I was hoping

                20    Mr. Farabee was here because he was the one

                21    pretty adamant about that.

                22                  And so I am designating that time

                23    for our regularly scheduled 3:00 meeting for the

                24    16th of March for that workshop, to have it.  So

                25    we'll just kind of meet as a group and kind of
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                 1    work through the --

                 2                  MR. HACKER:  16th of March; is that

                 3    correct?

                 4                  MR. TAYLOR:  16th of March, which

                 5    would be our regular March meeting date.

                 6                  MR. HACKER:  Okay.

                 7                  MR. TAYLOR:  So Petra will send out

                 8    a reminder on that particular --

                 9                  MR. HACKER:  I'm sorry, John, what

                10    is the subject of that workshop?

                11                  MR. TAYLOR:  So we're going to look

                12    at our rules of procedures.  I know there were

                13    some questions in the beginning of last year

                14    about fields, things in there.

                15                  MR. HACKER:  Okay.

                16                  MR. TAYLOR:  We just never sat down

                17    and talked about a few of the things that could

                18    be modified based on just a review sort of.  And

                19    so we'll have that as well as the criteria looked

                20    at as well.

                21                  MR. PARKER:  On the continuing

                22    education this Friday, I can't be there, but is

                23    it possible for that to get recorded in some

                24    fashion, so that I could come and hear it?  Even

                25    if I don't get a C&E credit, I would like to hear
�
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                 1    it.

                 2                  MR. TAYLOR:  Okay.  Typically, they

                 3    will have those available.  I will double back

                 4    and make sure --

                 5                  MR. PARKER:  Okay.

                 6                  MR. TAYLOR:  -- that those are

                 7    available.  Typically they will have those

                 8    available to review after.

                 9                  MR. HACKER:  If there is no other

                10    business, the motion is adjourned.

                11                  MR. PARKER:  So moved.

                12                  MR. HANAN:  Second.

                13                  MR. HACKER:  Will be seconded.  All

                14    in favor?

                15                  (All respond with aye.)

                16                  MR. HACKER:  We are adjourned.

                17                  (The BZA meeting was concluded at

                18    4:23 p.m.)
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